
 

Finance and Government Committee – February 02, 2021   Page 1 of 3 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

FINANCE AND GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 

COUNCIL BRIEFING ROOM 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 02, 2021 AT 2:30 PM 

AGENDA 

The meeting will be held at City Hall Council Briefing Room 300 W. Main St, Grand Prairie, Texas. 

CALL TO ORDER 

STAFF PRESENTATIONS 

1. General Obligation Bond Election Presentation – Presented by Deputy City Manager Cheryl 

DeLeon 

2. Internal Audit FY21 1st Quarter Report 

3. FYE 2020 – Parks Enterprise Financial Reports 

4. Monthly Insurance Fund Review 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The full agenda has been posted on the city's website, www.gptx.org, for those who may want to view this 

agenda in more detail. Citizens may speak for five minutes on any item on the agenda by completing and 

submitting a speaker card. 

5. Minutes of the December 15, 2020 Finance & Government Committee Meeting 

6. Minutes of the January 5, 2021 Finance & Government Committee Meeting 

7. Purchase of one (1) rescue hazmat truck from Siddons-Martin of Denton, using the Buy Board 

price agreement at a total cost of $1,199,742.11 after discounts from chassis prepayment 

discount, 100% prepayment discount, contract discount totaling $44,911.00 

8. Agreement with GPUC for Texas Emergency Rental Assistance Program Grant Funding in the 

Amount of $363,210.74 for rental assistance to eligible applicants in Grand Prairie 

9. Price Agreement for 150 12-gauge less lethal shotguns from Kiesler Police Supply, in the 

amount of $60,162.00 

10. Resolution authorizing the City Manager to apply for a STEP Commercial Vehicle Enforcement 

grant from the TxDOT, Texas Department of Transportation, to conduct commercial motor 

vehicle enforcement in the amount of $58,717.19 

11. Resolution for the City Manager to submit an application for FY 2021 Emergency Management 

Performance Grant (EMPG) and accept grant award from the Texas Department of Public 

Safety/Texas Division of Emergency Management, in an anticipated amount of $50,000 

1



 

Finance and Government Committee – February 02, 2021   Page 2 of 3 

12. Resolution authorizing the City Manager to accept a Selective Traffic Enforcement (STEP) 

grant from the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) for the enforcement of safety 

belt, child safety seat, speed, intersection traffic control, distracted driving and DWI laws in the 

amount of $309,849.57 

13. Price Agreement for Audio, Visual, and Lighting (AVL) services from Mike Milligan (up to 

$50,000.00 annually).  This agreement will be for one year with the option to renew for nine (9) 

additional one year periods totaling $500,000.00 if all extensions are exercised.  Award a 

secondary to Tye Cunningham (up to $50,000.00 annually) to be used only if the primary is 

unable to fulfill the needs of the department.  Authorize the City Manager to execute the 

renewal options with aggregate price fluctuations of the lesser of up to $50,000 or 25% of the 

original maximum price so long as sufficient funding is appropriated by the City Council to 

satisfy the City’s obligation during the renewal terms 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

14. Change Order/Amendment No. 6 with Hill & Wilkinson General Contractors for City Hall 

Municipal Campus Phase Two construction work in the amount of $95,129.45 for masonic 

stone installation, added paint work, millwork relocation, mailroom relocation, glazing 

treatment, electrical upgrades required by code, punch list work resolution, security room 

enhancements and project closeout scope of work required to finalize phase 2 work 

15. Ordinance Calling a Bond Election on May 1, 2021 in the amount of $75,000,000 for the 

Purpose of Providing Funds for Economic Development 

16. Resolution to Adopt 2021 Financial Management Policies 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes on any item not on the agenda by 

completing and submitting a speaker card. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Finance and Government Committee may conduct a closed session pursuant to Chapter 551, 

Subchapter D of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., to discuss any of the following: 

(1)        Section 551.071 “Consultation with Attorney” 

(2)        Section 551.072 “Deliberation Regarding Real Property” 

(3)        Section 551.074 “Personnel Matters” City Manager Contract  

(4)        Section 551.087 “Deliberations Regarding Economic Development Negotiations.”  

ADJOURNMENT 

The Grand Prairie City Hall is accessible to people with disabilities. If you need assistance in 

participating in this meeting due to a disability as defined under the ADA, please call 972 237 8018 or 

email Jennifer Stubbs (jstubbs@gptx.org) at least three (3) business days prior to the scheduled meeting 

to request an accommodation. 

Certification 

2



 

Finance and Government Committee – February 02, 2021   Page 3 of 3 

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A, the Finance and 

Government Committee agenda was prepared and posted January 29, 2021. 

 

Jennifer Stubbs, Deputy City Secretary 

 

 

3



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 01/19/2021 

REQUESTER: Becky Brooks, CFO 

PRESENTER: Cheryl DeLeon, Deputy City Manager 

TITLE: General Obligation Bond Election Presentation – Presented by Deputy 

City Manager Cheryl DeLeon 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4

Item 1.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/02/2021 

REQUESTER: Cathy Patrick 

PRESENTER: Cathy Patrick, Audit Services Director 

TITLE: Internal Audit FY21 1st Quarter Report 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: N/A 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Internal Audit FY21 1st Quarter Report 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5

Item 2.



FIELD WORK REPORT HOURS IMPLEMENTATION IMPLEMENTATION FOLLOW-UP

COMPLETED REPORTS DEPARTMENT COMPLETE DATE TO DATE PLAN COMPLETE REVIEW

HUD SEMAP Certification Housing 11/25/2020 12/14/2020 30 N/A N/A N/A

Kensington Motor Lodge Occupancy Tax Review Marketing 12/22/2020 12/22/2020 16 N/A N/A N/A

Crime Stoppers Police 10/27/2020 10/27/2020 30 N/A N/A N/A

Fiscal Services Revenue Police 11/2/2020 11/3/2020 89 N/A N/A N/A

State and Federal Seizures Police 12/16/2020 12/17/2020 115 N/A N/A 1/20/2021

Work In Progress

EnerGov Software Implementation (Inspection Software) 288

Capital Assets Reconciliation 129

Loyd Park Revenue 74

Miscellaneous Projects

Risk Assessment 58

Utility Audits 43

HR Surveys 31

Housing Promissory Notes & Portability Checks 29 Continual

Budget Procurement Card Review 22 Continual

Finance Investment Reconciliations 21 Continual

Short Term Rental Software Implementation 13

AUDIT SERVICES DEPARTMENT

Fiscal Year 2021
1st Quarter

6

Item 2.



7

Item 3.



8

Item 3.



9

Item 3.



10

Item 3.



11

Item 3.



12

Item 3.



13

Item 3.



14

Item 3.



15

Item 3.



16

Item 3.



17

Item 3.



18

Item 3.



19

Item 3.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/02/2021 

REQUESTER: Gary Yakesch 

PRESENTER: Gary Yakesch, Assistant Director Parks, Arts, & Recreation 

TITLE: FYE 2020 – Parks Enterprise Financial Reports 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Presentation Only 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Fiscal Year End 2020 Financial Report Presentation – Parks Enterprise Financial Reports 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None Presentation Only 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20

Item 3.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/02/2021 

REQUESTER: Lisa Norris 

PRESENTER: Lisa Norris, Human Resources Director 

TITLE: Monthly Insurance Fund Review 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: None 

  

ANALYSIS: 

The Insurance Fund has completed the first quarter through December 2020. The only notable item in 

revenues is that retiree contributions may show a lag as we have a new vendor implemented in October 

2020 and are working getting a consistent file of contributions made each month for deposit sent back to 

our City.  It should be caught up in the new year once that transfer becomes routinely completed each 

month.  

On expenses, claims have hit a high point during the past two months for actives (column 3 and 4, row 

29) and for retirees (row 30).  Right now, year-end projections appear high, but remember we are using 

the highest average (noted in red highlight in column 6) for all remaining months – and we are at year-

end following the peak of elective procedures being allowed following a COVID “stall” of such 

procedures that occurred between April – July 2020.  Claims will drop down beginning in January as 

people have to begin meeting their annual deductibles again.   Other  notable items pertain to row 34 for 

Pet Insurance which was a new benefit added last year and which we are now tracking via this new line 

item, as well as IBNR (Incurred But Not Reported) number being updated by the actuary in row 44 to 

$2.2 million from $2.18 million previously held in reserve. Also, we increased our Contingency Reserve 

in row 43 to $6 million from $5 million in the prior year.  Our financial policies indicate we will hold 

100% of the actuarially determined IBNR for this fund and a minimum of $2 million in the Contingency 

Reserve.  We choose to hold more in the event of a catastrophic year so that we can best “weather the 

storms.”  Nothing else is notable at this time.   

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

None 

 

 

 

 

21

Item 4.



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

22

Item 4.



23

Item 4.



 

 

MINUTES 

CITY COUNCIL FINANCE AND GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 

DECEMBER 15, 2020 

 

The City of Grand Prairie Finance and Government Committee convened at 2:30 p.m. on 

Tuesday, December 15, 2020 via Zoom video conference in Grand Prairie, Texas.  The following 

persons were in attendance: 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT             

Greg Giessner, Vice Chairman 

Jorja Clemson, Secretary   

 

Vice Chairman Giessner called the meeting to order. He acknowledged the passing of Finance 

Chairman Jim Swafford with honor and heart felt comments.     

 

 

Staff Presentations 

 
Item 1 – Employee Insurance Fund Monthly Review  

 

Ms. Lisa Norris, Human Resources Director, informed the committee that year end FY 19-20 

ended well with a $970,596 positive balance. For the insurance fund FY 20-21, there is not 

enough data to make a projection. Vice Chairman Giessner inquired when the 100% covid-19 

co-pay coverage will end. Ms. Norris replied that is driven by Blue Cross Blue Shield and is 

scheduled to end on December 31, 2020. The committee thanked Lisa for her report.  

 

Item 2 – Internal Audit 2021 Work Plan  

 

Management Services Director, Ms. Cathy Patrick, advised the committee of current audit 

projects. We are reconciling all capital assets in the TML insurance file to our fixed asset list in 

Lawson versus what we have on hand. Vice Chairman Giessner asked if any new areas were 

added to the audit workplan. Ms. Patrick said capital assets have never been audited and Mr. 

Hart requested this review. Secretary Clemson moved to approve and send to City Council for 

review. Mr. Giessner seconded. Motion carried 2-0.    

 

Consent Agenda 
 

Vice Chairman Giessner asked Secretary Clemson if she needed to remove any items from the 

consent agenda. Ms. Clemson said she did not. Mr. Giessner moved to approve Items 3 – 7 on 

consent and send them to City Council for review and approval. Ms. Clemson seconded.  

Motion carried 2 – 0.  

24

Item 5.



City Council Finance and Government Committee Meeting Minutes 

December 15, 2020 

 

 

Item 3 – Minutes of the November 3, 2020, Finance and Government Committee Meeting 

 

Item 4 – Purchase of Electric and Gas Utility Auditing services from Troy & Banks at 33% of 

realized savings 

 

Item 5 – Revised Agreement and time extension with Global Gaming LSP, LLC for the Lone 

Star Park Logo on the Bowles Water Tower for an additional 5-year term at $600 monthly  

 

Item 6 – Agreement to lease SendPro P Series Mail Sorting and Postage Hardware with 

Software for four years from Pitney Bowes Inc. through a national inter-local agreement with 

BuyBoard at an estimated annual cost of $16,822 for a total cost for all four years of $67,286 

 

Item 7 – Resolution Establishing the City of Grand Prairie’s Chapter 380 Economic 

Development Program  

 

Items for Individual Consideration 

 

Item 8 – Resolution approving the City’s Investment Policy 

 

Ms. Becky Brooks, Chief Financial Officer informed the committee this is an annual policy 

review. There were only a couple of minor changes. Mr. Brady Olsen, Treasury & Debt Manager 

discussed those changes. Vice Chairman Giessner inquired if that change in financial policy 

applies to both City Council and Sport Corp. Mr. Olsen replied they would need to approve the 

version, but yes, we would be recommending it. Secretary Clemson moved to approve and send 

to City Council for review. Mr. Giessner seconded. Motion carried 2-0.    

    

 

Item 9 – Resolution authoring the Treasury and Debt Manager to execute a general release 

with Elavon Inc in the amount of $141,392.17 regarding credit card transaction processing 

 

Mr. Olsen advised the committee this item will hopefully close out our business with Elavon. 

The committee had no questions. Ms. Cheryl DeLeon, Deputy City Manager complimented Mr. 

Olsen on doing a phenomenal job, and nothing being escalated past him. Vice Chairman 

Giessner also thanked him for making sure the revenue was collected. Secretary Clemson 

thanked Mr. Olsen and his team for handling this situation in house. Ms. Clemson moved to 

approve and send to City Council for review. Mr. Giessner seconded. Motion carried 2-0.    

 

 

Item 10 – Ordinance amending the FY 2020/2021 Baseball Operating Fund by appro-

priating $1,300,000 from fund balance for a cash grant to MLC Dallas Stadium Co, LLC 

(or related assignee), and $200,000 from contingency for a maintenance reserve deposit 

 

City Attorney, Ms. Megan Mahan informed the committee this item is an accompanying 

ordinance to the cricket economic development deal. Vice Chairman Giessner clarified that 

money will come directly from the baseball fund and that it has $8.1 million in it. Ms. Kathleen 

25

Item 5.



City Council Finance and Government Committee Meeting Minutes 

December 15, 2020 

 

Mercer, Budget Director replied yes, that is correct.  Mr. Marty Wieder, Director of Economic 

Development updated the press conference status and said it will not happen until next year. 

However, that should not delay permits and construction. Secretary Clemson asked if the 

$200,000 for maintenance reserve is in the fund all of the time. Ms. Mahan said it works as a 

safety net and they would replenish it. Mr. Giessner inquired if going forward monthly and or 

quarterly property inspections will happen. Ms. Mahan replied that is an excellent point. Mr. 

Dye stated we will pay more attention to ongoing monitoring of the property maintenance. Ms. 

Clemson questioned if the contract will specifically mention what they are responsible for and 

what the city is responsible for. Mr. Dye answered they are responsible for 100% of the 

maintenance. Mr. Giessner moved to approve and send to City Council for review and approval. 

Ms. Clemson seconded. Motion carried 2 – 0.  

 

 

Item 11 – Ordinance adopting TIF Board Recommendation related to TIRZ #3 Amended 

Project Plan & Financing Plan 

 

Mr. Wieder advised the committee of the TIF #3 background, amendment and the 

project/financing plan. Vice Chairman Giessner asked if the city is the only participating entity. 

Mr. Wieder said yes, but it is likely that some other taxing entities would join. Mr. Giessner 

questioned if the school district and community college district would participate. Mr. Wieder 

answered the legislative house bill #3 made it almost impossible for school districts to 

participate. However, there is some possibility for the county colleges. The committee thanked 

Marty for an outstanding job. Mr. Giessner moved to approve and send to City Council for 

review and approval. Ms. Clemson seconded. Motion carried 2 – 0.  

 

 

Item 12 – Resolution amending Resolution 5126-2020 for a Chapter 380 Economic 

Development Agreement with Grand Prairie Local Government Corporation to increase 

the cash grant to a total of $2,900,000 to be used for purchase and maintenance of real 

property; identify the property located at 401 W. Church Street as a suitable site for the 

location, relocation or expansion of a business within the City 

 

Mr. Dye briefed the committee about how and why the corporation was established. Vice 

Chairman Giessner asked if the capital project budget is the funding source. Ms. Brooks said 

yes, it is the capital reserve fund. Secretary Clemson moved to approve and send to City Council 

for review. Mr. Giessner seconded. Motion carried 2-0.    

 

 

Item 13 – Contract for Credit Card Payment System with sole source provider OpenEdge 

for an initial term of 1 year with options to renew annually; OpenEdge will have an 

effective rate of 0.95% (estimated at $11,964 annually); Authorize the City Manager to 

execute up to 5 renewal options with aggregate price fluctuations of the lesser of up to 

$50,000 or 25% of the original maximum price so long as enough funding is appropriated 

by the City Council to satisfy the City's obligation during the renewal terms; additional 

renewals past 5 require additional City Council approval 

 

26

Item 5.



City Council Finance and Government Committee Meeting Minutes 

December 15, 2020 

 

Internal Auditor, Mr. Thao Vo advised the committee this a typical construction change order. 

Secretary Clemson clarified that currently there is not something in place to take online 

payments. Mr. Vo replied that is correct. However, the new system will be ready in May 2021. 

Ms. Clemson asked which departments will be able to take those online payments. Mr. Vo said it 

includes most permit payments except alarm. Vice Chairman Giessner moved to approve and 

send to City Council for review and approval. Ms. Clemson seconded. Motion carried 2 – 0.   

 

 

Item 14 – Ordinance amending the FY 2020/2021 Capital Improvement Projects Budget; 

Change Order #1 in the amount of $64,000 to add twenty (20) additional EnerGov Business 

Management Suite Licenses from Tyler Technologies. In addition, a contract amendment 

for the removal of EnerGov software components deemed no longer necessary resulting in 

a decrease in contract costs of $15,000 

 

Mr. Vo informed the committee as part of the implementation process, we found out that more 

licenses were needed. Secretary Clemson observed that all departments should have online 

payment capabilities for citizens and vendors. Ms. DeLeon responded yes; we are looking into 

that. Vice Chairman Giessner moved to approve and send to City Council for review and 

approval. Ms. Clemson seconded. Motion carried 2 – 0.   

 

 

Item 15 – Independent Contractor/Personal Services contract for strategic planning at Epic 

Central for one year with Rick Coleman in the annual amount not to exceed $55,000, plus 

$10,000.00 for approved reimbursables; with the option to renew for one (1) additional one 

(1) year period for a total amount of $130,000 if all renewals are exercised; authorize City 

Manager to execute renewals under the same terms as the original contract  

 

Item 16 – Independent Contractor/Personal Services contract for strategic planning at Epic 

Central for one year with Jason Alan Smith in the annual amount not to exceed $35,000, 

plus $5,000 for approved reimbursable expenses; with the option to renew for one 

additional one year period for a total amount of $80,000 if all renewals are exercised; 

authorize City Manager to execute renewals under the same terms as the original contract 

 
Mr. Duane Strawn, Director of Parks, Arts and Recreation advised the committee we are seeking 
help in developing and creating a work plan for the animation at Epic Central. Vice Chairman 
Giessner requested examples. Mr. Strawn responded Mr. Coleman would handle large 2-3-day 
festivals while Mr. Smith would handle the small, Sunday afternoon and boardwalk type events. 
Mr. Giessner inquired do you think Epic Central needs that additional marketing and 
salesmanship. Mr. Strawn replied we chose them because they are visionaries and very creative. 
Secretary Clemson questioned how often they will get paid. Mr. Strawn answered they will be 
billed for deliverables once per month. Ms. Clemson asked if after 1 year, would we review how 
it is working. Mr. Strawn said we will probably set them up for review after the first 6 months of 
their contracts. Ms. Clemson moved to approve this item with an amendment of contract review 
and send to City Council for their review. Mr. Giessner seconded. Motion carried 2-0.  
 

 

 

27

Item 5.



City Council Finance and Government Committee Meeting Minutes 

December 15, 2020 

 

 

Item 17 – Ordinance amending the FY 2020/2021 Capital Improvement Projects Budget; 

contract to replace electrical panels and related components at The Summit with Voss 

Lighting in the amount of $90,820 with a 5% contingency of $4,541 through a national 

inter-local agreement with cooperative agreement through National Cooperative 

Purchasing Alliance for a total project cost not to exceed $95,361 

 
Mr. Strawn advised the committee this item is for repairs at The Summit. Ideally, we want to get 
all of this done before the re-opening. Vice Chairman Giessner asked how long the electrical 
repairs will take. Mr. Strawn said 6 – 8 weeks and then 1 week for installation. The plan is to re-
open on March 1, 2021. Mr. Giessner asked Mr. Strawn if he would classify these repairs and 
emergency repairs and he said absolutely. Secretary Clemson moved to approve and send to City 
Council for review. Mr. Giessner seconded. Motion carried 2-0.      
 
 

Vice Chairman Giessner gave an invitation for citizens to speak. Mr. Barron Fraker, I.T. 

Systems Administrator verified that no citizens were present for the video conference.  

 

Mr. Giessner asked the committee and staff if they would like to say a few words about Mr. 

Swafford. Ms. Mercer and Ms. Clemson shared stories and kind remarks about him.  

 

 

 

 
Executive Session 

 

No executive session was called at today’s meeting.  

 

 

 

The Finance and Government Committee meeting adjourned at 3:53 p.m. 
 

                                                                                                   

______________________________  ___________________________________   

Greg Giessner, Vice Chairman           Date 

Finance and Government Committee      

28

Item 5.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/02/2021 

REQUESTER: Jennifer Stubbs, Deputy City Secretary  

PRESENTER: Greg Giessner, Chairman 

TITLE: Minutes of the December 15, 2020 Finance & Government Committee 

Meeting 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

29

Item 5.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/02/2021 

REQUESTER: Paula Elliott, Executive Assistant- Finance 

PRESENTER: Greg Giessner, Chairman 

TITLE: Minutes of the January 5, 2021 Finance & Government Committee 

Meeting 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

30

Item 6.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/02/2021 

REQUESTER: Mike Joy 

PRESENTER: Robert Fite, Fire Chief 

TITLE: Purchase of one (1) rescue hazmat truck from Siddons-Martin of 

Denton, using the Buy Board price agreement at a total cost of 

$1,199,742.11 after discounts from chassis prepayment discount, 100% 

prepayment discount, contract discount totaling $44,911.00. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Since the formation of the Grand Prairie Fire Hazardous Materials (HazMat) team, we have been at the 

forefront of local and regional responses. 

Grand Prairie has 4 major highways through our city, with many hazardous materials involved in a 

wreck. From a minor hazard to a major event, our HazMat team handles it from start to finish. This 

involves equipment used to mitigating, containing, to physically packing materials using specialized 

containers for disposal. We carry a large amount of equipment and instruments for this purpose. Our 

team is also first backup for all south Dallas and Ft Worth, meaning if their team is unavailable, our 

HazMat responds. Currently, HazMat utilizes a large trailer pulled by a pickup for transporting 

equipment. While it served us well in the beginning, our call volume and ability to respond requires us 

to have a vehicle dedicated to this purpose. It will also have a Command center inside for prolonged 

events, whether hazmat or fire related. Our team charges the company at fault or their insurance, which 

pays for much of the equipment used. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Funding for the purchase and prepayment of one (1) rescue hazmat truck is available in the Fire Capital 

Projects Fund (400591), WO #02100303 (Fire Station Storage and Hazardous Materials Response). 

 

 

31

Item 7.



Fund/Activity Account:

Project Title: Fire Station Storage and Hazardous Materials Response

Current Request:

1 2 3 2+3 1+3

ACCOUNT CURRENT AVAILABLE CURRENT REVISED AMENDED

DESCRIPTION BUDGET BALANCE REQUEST BALANCE BUDGET

Autos and Trucks (68320) $1,200,000 $1,200,000 $1,200,000 $1,200,000

Construction (68540) $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

TOTAL $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $0 $1,500,000 $1,500,000

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET SUMMARY

400591/02100303

$0.00

32

Item 7.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/02/2021 

REQUESTER: Andrew Fortune 

PRESENTER: Andrew Fortune, Manager of Legislative Affairs 

TITLE: Agreement with GPUC for Texas Emergency Rental Assistance 

Program Grant Funding in the Amount of $363,210.74 for rental 

assistance to eligible applicants in Grand Prairie.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Enter into an agreement authorizing Grand Prairie United Charities as a third party administrator for 

Texas Emergency Rental Assistance grant funding in the amount of $363,210.74 for the purpose of 

administering rental assistance to eligible applicants in Grand Prairie. Grand Prairie United Charities 

will adhere to the guidelines and reporting requirements put forward by the Texas Department of 

Housing and Community Affairs.  

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Funding in the amount of $363,210.74 will be allocated to account 161010-45165-CARESRENT. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

33

Item 8.



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

34

Item 8.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/01/2021 

REQUESTER: Fred Bates, Jr. 

PRESENTER: Daniel Scesney, Chief of Police 

TITLE: Price Agreement for 150 12-gauge less lethal shotguns from Kiesler 

Police Supply, in the amount of $60,162.00. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

The Grand Prairie Police Department serves a City that is situated within an exponentially growing Dallas 

- Fort Worth region.  The combination of urban, suburban, commercial, and industrial growth in this 

region necessitates a vibrant, progressive, and well-trained police department that understands and 

respects the need to continually enhance its effectiveness in providing a safe environment for its citizens, 

visitors, and officers in a mutual partnership.   

 

The Grand Prairie Police Department functions under the guiding principle of the “sanctity of life” and 

based on current research in the area of use of force incidents, it is vital that police officers be equipped 

with technology that affords them the ability to respond to dangerous encounters with viable options.  One 

such viable response option is when the line-level patrol officer is equipped with the less-lethal shotgun.  

A less-lethal shotgun affords officers the ability to respond safely to dangerous situations while also 

protecting the lives of individuals who may pose a danger to themselves or others.  Staff therefore 

recommends that less-lethal patrol shotguns be purchased to equip each line-level patrol officer.  

 

Notice of bid #21004 was advertised in the Fort Worth Star Telegram and Public Purchase; it was 

distributed to twenty-seven vendors. There was one Grand Prairie vendor available for this commodity.  

Four bids were received as shown on attachment A.  

 

The award was based on best value criteria set up in the specification, including material markup, 

reputation, quality of service, price, past relationship with the city and other municipalities, if they were 

local, and other relevant criteria as listed in the specification.  

 

Kiesler Police Supply meets specifications and is recommended for award.   

 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Funds are available in the Police Department State Asset Forfeiture Fund.  

35

Item 9.



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

36

Item 9.



BID OPTION #2 BID OPTION #1

Jeffersonville, IN Lafayette, LA Prescott, AZ Jeffersonville, IN
Evaluation Criteria Maximum Score Score Score Score Score
Price 60.00 60.00 52.27 
Lead Time 25.00 25.00 21.88 
Past experience with the City of Grand 
Prairie or another municipality 10.00 9.60 10.00 

Local Business Presence 5.00 0.00 0.00 

Total 100.00 94.60 84.14 Rejected Rejected

 

Bid Tabulator:
Bid Open Date:

Bids were publically opened and read at the City of Grand Prairie Office of the Purchasing Division at the time indicated above.  The bid 
tabulation has been verified, by tabulator, as accurate based on the Unit Cost presented by each bidder.

Kiesler Police 
Supply

Bid Option #1 - 
Only bid the orange 

stock and forend 
grips for the 

Remington model; 
no bids received for 

the Remington 
model shotgun

Notes Bid Option #2
Complete and accurate bid

Kiesler Police 
Supply

Proforce Law 
EnforcementBarney's Inc

Anda Upchurch
Monday, November 16, 2020

RFB #  21004
Less-Lethal Shotguns

Evaluation Score Card

Did not bid the orange 
stock and forend grips 

for the Mossberg model, 
which are necessary to 

designate these as "less-
lethal" weapons

37

Item 9.



Item Description QTY UOM Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

1 12ga shotgun 150.00 EA 316.37             47,455.50        369.59     55,438.50        334.47     50,170.50        No Bid

2 Hogue less-lethal orange stock and 
forend grip 150.00 EA 55.61               8,341.50          51.96       7,794.00          No Bid 55.61       8,341.50          

3 Tac-Star Slimline side saddle shotgun 
shell holder 150.00 EA 29.10               4,365.00          28.00       4,200.00          23.40       3,510.00          29.10       4,365.00          

Total Base-Bid: 60,162.00$      67,432.50$      53,680.50$      12,706.50$      
Add Alternate:

Item Description QTY UOM Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

4 Pre-assemble the stock, forend grip, 
and shell holder onto the gun 150.00 EA No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

5 12ga shotgun 50.00   EA 319.32             15,966.00        369.59     18,479.50        334.47     16,723.50        No Bid

6 Hogue less-lethal orange stock and 
forend grip 50.00   EA 56.65               2,832.50          51.96       2,598.00          No Bid 55.61       2,780.50          

7 Tac-Star Slimline side saddle shotgun 
shell holder 50.00   EA 29.63               1,481.50          28.00       1,400.00          24.10       1,205.00          29.10       1,455.00          

8 Pre-assemble the stock, forend grip, 
and shell holder onto the gun 50.00   EA No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

Total Add-Alternate: 20,280.00$      22,477.50$      17,928.50$      4,235.50$        

Grand Total: 80,442.00$      89,910.00$      71,609.00$      16,942.00$      

69,268.00$      79,518.00$      71,609.00$      NA

Low bid
Max Score

Jeffersonville, INPrescott, AZLafayette, LA

Remington (accessories only)Mossberg #50778Mossberg #50778

Kiesler Police SupplyProforce Law EnforcementBarney's Inc

BID OPTION #1
REJECT - Unable to obtain the 

Remington model for these 
accessories.

BID OPTION #2

Kiesler Police Supply

Remington (accessories only)Mossberg #50778

Kiesler Police SupplyKiesler Police Supply

Total of items for Scoring (does not include the stock and forend grip)

Proforce Law EnforcementBarney's Inc

Mossberg #50778Mossberg #50778

REJECT - Did not bid the 
orange stock and forend grips, 

which are required for these less-
lethal shotguns

Bid Tabulation
Less-Lethal Shotguns

RFB #  21004

$69,268.00

52.27

Brand/Model:

$69,268.00 NA$79,518.00
Score

Lafayette, LA

Mossberg #50778Brand/Model:

Base Bid:

BID OPTION #2

BID OPTION #1
REJECT - Unable to obtain the 

Remington model for these 
accessories.

Less-Lethal Shotguns
RFB #  21004

Price Evaluation

 NA
60.00

Total Bid
Vendor

REJECT - Did not bid the 
orange stock and forend grips, 
which are required for these 

less-lethal shotguns

60.00

Price FORMULA: The bidder with the lowest price receives the maximum score. The bidder with the next lowest price receives
points based on dividing its price into the lowest price and multiplying that percentage by the available points.

For example: Assume 50 points is the max score. Next, assume that $50,000 is the low offer. That bidder would receive 50 points
for price ($50,000/$50,000 = 1.00 x 50 = 50). Assume $55,000 is the next low offer, then that bidder would receive 45.455 points
($50,000/$55,000 = 0.9091 x 50 = 45.455), etc.

38

Item 9.



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/02/2021 

REQUESTER: Fred Bates, Jr. 

PRESENTER: Daniel Scesney, Chief of Police 

TITLE: 
Resolution authorizing the City Manager to apply for a STEP Commercial 

Vehicle Enforcement grant from the TxDOT, Texas Department of 

Transportation, to conduct commercial motor vehicle enforcement in the 

amount of $58,717.19. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

The City of Grand Prairie covers 81.4 square miles, is the 5th largest city in the Metroplex in land mass, 

and is situated in three counties (Dallas, Tarrant, and Ellis).  The City has a growing population of over 

180,000 residents and provides emergency response service for two major Interstate Highways (I-20 and 

I-30), three State Highways (SH 360, SH 180, and SH 161), US Hwy 287, and Spur Hwy 303.  Grand 

Prairie is a central and connecting City facilitating millions of large commercial vehicles each year.  The 

City's industrial districts house some of the largest distributors in the country.  Approximately 30 percent 

of the City's property tax value is industrial and commercial. 

 

The mission of the Grand Prairie Police Department’s Traffic Unit in relationship to commercial motor 

vehicle’s is to enforce the laws of the State of Texas and the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations to 

help ensure the safe and efficient movement of commercial traffic traveling the highways and local streets 

within the City.  Through effective enforcement and interaction with the trucking industry and citizens, 

the police department's goal is to reduce commercial vehicle crashes and the number of unsafe vehicles 

operating on the roadways.   

 

The GPPD’s Traffic Unit’s goal is to also promote detection and correction of commercial motor vehicle 

safety defects, commercial vehicle driver deficiencies, and unsafe motor carrier practices before they 

become contributing factors to crashes and hazardous materials incidents.  This should thereby contribute 

to the reduction of commercial vehicle crashes in the City.  Due to the large volume of warehouse, 

industrial, and commercial space in the City, the unit plans to address the growing Metroplex problem of 

Commercial Motor Vehicle thefts and cargo thefts.  The unit, in anticipation of proactively addressing 

cargo thefts, is applying for additional funds in this grant for that purpose.   

 

The Public Safety, Health, and Environmental Committee reviewed this item on February 1, 2021 and 

recommended that it be forwarded to the City Council for approval. 

 

39

Item 10.



Page 2 of 3 

 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

The grant period begins October 1, 2021 and ends September 30, 2022.  It is anticipated the total cost for 

the City during this period will amount to a cash match of $11,825.60.  Funding will be allocated in the 

FY 2021 General Fund budget.  The Texas Department of Transportation will fund $46,891.89 to pay the 

City for overtime salaries and benefits for enforcement efforts.  Project cost will total $58,717.49.   

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, IN SUPPORT OF A TxDOT 

GRANT GRAND PRAIRIE POLICE DEPARTMENT'S TRAFFIC UNIT TO CONDUCT 

COMMERCIAL MOTOR VEHICLE INSPECTIONS, CONDUCT PUBLIC AWARENESS 

CAMPAIGNS IN THE AMOUNT OF $58,717.49. 

 

WHEREAS, the Grand Prairie Police Department wishes to apply for funding this opportunity to promote 

detection and correction of commercial motor vehicle safety defects, commercial vehicle driver 

deficiencies, and unsafe motor carrier practices before they become contributing factors to crashes and 

hazardous materials incidents; 

 

WHEREAS, the City will provide a cash match of $11,825.60 to the Texas Department of Transportation;   

 

WHEREAS, in the event of loss or misuse of TxDot funds, the City of Grand Prairie assures that the 

funds will be returned; 

  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS THAT: 

 

SECTION 1.  the City Council of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, does hereby authorize the City 

Manager to apply for, and accept if awarded, a grant in the amount $58,717.49 to promote detection and 

correction of commercial motor vehicle safety defects, commercial vehicle driver deficiencies, and unsafe 

motor carrier practices before they become contributing factors to crashes and hazardous materials 

incidents. 

 

SECTION 2.  this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval in 

accordance with the Charter of the City of Grand Prairie and it is accordingly so resolved. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS, ON THIS THE 2nd DAY OF FEBRUARY 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

40

Item 10.



Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

41

Item 10.



42

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 1 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
43

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 2 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
44

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 3 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
45

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 4 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
46

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 5 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
47

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 6 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
48

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 7 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
49

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 8 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
50

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 9 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
51

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 10 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
52

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 11 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
53

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 12 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
54

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 13 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
55

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 14 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
56

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 15 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
57

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 16 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
58

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 17 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
59

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 18 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
60

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 19 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
61

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 20 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
62

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 21 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
63

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 22 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
64

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 23 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
65

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 24 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
66

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 25 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
67

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 26 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
68

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 27 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
69

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 28 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
70

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 29 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
71

Item 10.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP CMV 2022

Page 30 of 30  2022-GrandPra-S-CMV-00036 Printed On: 1/7/2021
72

Item 10.



Page 1 of 3 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

RESOLUTION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/02/2021 

REQUESTER: Chase Wheeler 

PRESENTER: Chase Wheeler, EMC 

TITLE: Resolution for the City Manager to submit an application for FY 2021 

Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG) and accept grant 

award from the Texas Department of Public Safety/Texas Division of 

Emergency Management, in an anticipated amount of $50,000. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

The grant award amount for FY 2021 has not yet been calculated by the State and Federal Government; 

however an estimate of $50,000 is anticipated. The City of Grand Prairie is at the advanced level of 

preparedness and is considered an eligible jurisdiction for the FY 2021 Emergency Management 

Performance Grant. 

The City of Grand Prairie Office of Emergency Management (GP OEM) plans to apply for and receive a 

grant award for approximately $50,000 for grant period October 1, 2020 to September 30, 2021 from the 

State of Texas Department of Public Safety/Division of Emergency Management for GP OEM to 

receive reimbursement for emergency management program-related expenses. The City of Grand Prairie 

Office of Emergency Management has received EMPG grant awards for the last several years by 

completing the necessary requirements.  

The purpose of the EMPG grant program is to make grants to states to assist local governments in 

preparing for all hazards, as authorized by the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency 

Assistance Act. Title VI of the Stafford Act authorizes FEMA to make grants for the purpose of 

providing a system of emergency preparedness for the protection of life and property in the United 

States from hazards and to vest the responsibility for emergency preparedness jointly in the federal 

government and the states and their political subdivisions.  

Associated reporting requirements are included in this grant to determine how effective the City of 

Grand Prairie (grantee) is utilizing the EMPG program funding to prepare for all hazards and advance a 

whole community approach. With these measures, the City of Grand Prairie Office of Emergency 

Management must evaluate the progress towards achieving specified objectives in quarterly EMPG 

program reports and in compliance with the below reporting requirements: 

 

73

Item 11.



Page 2 of 3 

- Maintain an approved Emergency Management Plan and Annexes 

- Develop and Maintain a Multi-Year Training and Exercise Plan to include conducting of 

exercises. 

- Verify Capability of Personnel through the completion of National Incident Management 

System (NIMS) related training and other required emergency management-related training. 

- Completion of Work Plans, Progress Reports #1 & #2, and Quarterly Financial Reports must 

be submitted. 

The federal government, through the EMPG program, provides necessary direction, coordination, and 

guidance, and provides necessary assistance, as authorized so that a comprehensive emergency 

preparedness system exists for all hazards. 

 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

As part of the FY 2020/2021 budget, the City Council approved $415,153 in total expenditures for the 

Office of Emergency Management (OEM).  Since the City has consistently received EMPG grant 

funding for many years now, an estimate of $50,000 in EMPG grant revenue was also included in the 

FY 2020/2021 budget in anticipation of receiving the award again. If the City is awarded this grant, no 

other financial consideration is necessary.  However, if the City does not receive the grant award in FY 

2020/2021, OEM budget expenditures and/or revenue adjustments will be necessary.         

BODY 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,  

(add the function of the resolution in this caption; i.e. what action is being taken by adoption of this 

resolution - uppercase) 

WHEREAS,   the Grand Prairie Office of Emergency Management wishes to apply for funding to 

maintain the emergency management program and to prevent, prepare for, respond to and recover from 

hazards that face the City of Grand Prairie; 

WHEREAS,  the City will accept FY 2021 Emergency Management Performance Grant 

reimbursements from the Texas Division of Emergency Management for emergency management 

program-related expenses;   

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS THAT: 

 

SECTION 1.  the City Council of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, does hereby authorize the City 

Manager to apply for and accept if awarded the FY 2021 Emergency Management Performance Grant and 

receive grant reimbursements to promote emergency preparedness, maintain the emergency management 

program and to prevent, prepare for, respond to and recover from emergencies and disasters that we may 

face in the City of Grand Prairie. 

 

SECTION 2.  this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval in 

accordance with the Charter of the City of Grand Prairie and it is accordingly so resolved. 

 

74

Item 11.



Page 3 of 3 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS, ON THIS THE 2ND DAY OF February, 2021. 

 

75

Item 11.



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/02/2021 

REQUESTER: Fred Bates, Jr. 

PRESENTER: Daniel Scesney, Chief of Police 

TITLE: 
Resolution authorizing the City Manager to accept a Selective Traffic 

Enforcement (STEP) grant from the Texas Department of 

Transportation (TxDOT) for the enforcement of safety belt, child safety 

seat, speed, intersection traffic control, distracted driving and DWI laws 

in the amount of $309,849.57. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

The results of special statewide traffic enforcement efforts in Texas and other states confirm that 

coordinated programs, such as the Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP), are highly effective in 

reducing traffic-related fatalities, injuries and costs.   

 

The Grand Prairie Police Department has participated in the Selective Traffic Enforcement Program for 

30 years. The total grant money addresses primarily seatbelt, child safety seat, speeding, intersection 

traffic control, and DWI laws.  

 

From October 2019 through August 2020, the TxDOT STEP Grant has resulted in the following grant-

related citation totals: speeding violations 9071; seatbelt use violations 338; unrestrained child violations 

241; intersection control devices violations 1964.  The total number of citations issued as part of the grant 

program from October 2019 through September 2020 was 19334, which includes the above totals and 

non-hazardous violations.   

The Selective Traffic Enforcement Program benefits the citizens of Grand Prairie by increasing safety 

belt compliance and reducing the number of crashes caused by excessive speed, disregarding traffic 

control devices, and alcohol consumption.   

 

The Public Safety, Health and Environmental Committee reviewed this item on February 1, 2021 and 

recommended that it be forwarded to the City Council for approval. 

 

 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

76

Item 12.



Page 2 of 3 

The grant period begins October 1, 2021 and ends September 30, 2022.  It is anticipated the total cost for 

the City during this period will amount to a cash match of $186,058.14.  Funding will be allocated in the 

FY 2021 General Fund budget.  The Texas Department of Transportation will fund $123,791.43 to pay 

the City for overtime salaries and benefits for enforcement efforts.  Project cost will total $309,849.57.  

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, IN SUPPORT OF A TEXAS 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION GRANT FOR SAFETY BELT, CHILD SAFETY 

SEAT, SPEED, INTERSECTION TRAFFIC CONTROL, AND DWI ENFORCEMENT IN THE 

AMOUNT OF 309,849.57 TO BECOME EFFECTIVE UPON ITS PASSAGE AND APPROVAL. 
 

WHEREAS, the Grand Prairie Police Department wishes to participate in an intensified enforcement of 

safety belt, child safety seat, speed, intersection traffic control and DWI laws; 

 

WHEREAS, the City will provide a cash match of $186,058.14 to the Texas Department of 

Transportation;   

 

WHEREAS, in the event of loss or misuse of Texas Department of Transportation funds, the City of 

Grand Prairie assures that the funds will be returned to the Texas Department of Transportation in full; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS THAT: 

 

SECTION 1.  the City Manager of the City of Grand Prairie is empowered to accept, reject, alter or 

terminate this grant on behalf of the City Council; 

 

SECTION 2.  this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval in 

accordance with the Charter of the City of Grand Prairie and it is accordingly so resolved. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS, ON THIS THE 2ND DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

77

Item 12.



Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

 

78

Item 12.



79

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 1 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
80

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 2 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
81

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 3 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
82

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 4 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
83

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 5 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
84

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 6 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
85

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 7 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
86

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 8 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
87

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 9 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
88

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 10 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
89

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 11 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
90

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 12 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
91

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 13 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
92

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 14 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
93

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 15 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
94

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 16 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
95

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 17 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
96

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 18 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
97

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 19 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
98

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 20 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
99

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 21 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
100

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 22 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
101

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 23 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
102

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 24 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
103

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 25 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
104

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 26 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
105

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 27 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
106

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 28 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
107

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 29 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
108

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 30 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
109

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 31 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
110

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 32 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
111

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 33 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
112

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 34 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
113

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 35 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
114

Item 12.



City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2022

Page 36 of 36  2022-GrandPra-S-1YG-00068 Printed On: 1/7/2021
115

Item 12.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/02/2021 

REQUESTER: Gary Yakesch, Assistant Director of Parks Finance 

PRESENTER: Duane Strawn, Director of Parks, Arts and Recreation 

TITLE: 
Price Agreement for Audio, Visual, and Lighting (AVL) services from 

Mike Milligan (up to $50,000.00 annually).  This agreement will be for 

one year with the option to renew for nine (9) additional one year 

periods totaling $500,000.00 if all extensions are exercised.  Award a 

secondary to Tye Cunningham (up to $50,000.00 annually) to be used 

only if the primary is unable to fulfill the needs of the department.  

Authorize the City Manager to execute the renewal options with 

aggregate price fluctuations of the lesser of up to $50,000 or 25% of the 

original maximum price so long as sufficient funding is appropriated by 

the City Council to satisfy the City’s obligation during the renewal 

terms. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

 

This agreement will be utilized by multiple City facilities, including: Uptown Theater, The Epic, The 

Summit, Ruthe Jackson Center, and other special event locations as needed.  Audio, visual and lighting 

services shall include software and equipment maintenance, installation, diagnostic, repair/replacement, 

and technical lighting and sound engineer services. 

 

Notice of bid #21023 was advertised in the Fort Worth Star Telegram, the State's Electronic Business 

Daily, and Public Purchase; it was distributed to 41 vendors. There were 3 Grand Prairie vendors 

available for this service type.  3 bids were received as shown on attachment A.  

 

The award was based on best value criteria set up in the specification, including cost, technical merit, past 

experience, local business presence, and other relevant criteria as listed in the specification.  

 

Mike Milligan and Tye Cunningham meet specifications and are recommended for award.   

 

This item was presented to the Finance and Government Committee on February 2, 2021 for review and 

approval. 

 

116

Item 13.



Page 2 of 2 

 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Funds are available in various department operating budgets and will be charged accordingly on orders 

through the end of the fiscal year.  Funding for future fiscal years will be paid from that year’s approved 

budgets.  

 

 

 

 

117

Item 13.



BID NAME 

RFB #21023 

TABULATION 

 

SCORECARD 

 

PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCEQTY UOM UNIT PRICE EXTENDED UNIT PRICE EXTENDED UNIT PRICE EXTENDED UNIT PRICE EXTENDED UNIT PRICE EXTENDED

1 Uptown Theater -$                -$                4,920.00$     4,920.00$        300.00$   1,200.00$        300.00$   1,200.00$        

2 The Epic -$                -$                5,880.00$     5,880.00$        300.00$   1,200.00$        300.00$   1,200.00$        

3 The Summit -$                -$                2,960.00$     2,960.00$        300.00$   600.00$           300.00$   1,200.00$        

4 Ruthe Jackson Center -$                -$                1,960.00$     1,960.00$        300.00$   600.00$           300.00$   1,200.00$        

-$                -$                15,720.00$      3,600.00$        4,800.00$        

SERVICE CALLS - ROUTINE QTY UOM

5 Repair/Replacement 1 HR

6 New Installations 1 HR

7 End User Training 1 HR

8 Other not listed 1 HR

SERVICE CALLS - EVENT PRODUCTIONQTY UOM

9 Sound & Lighting Engineering 1 HR

Bid Tabulation

Communication Concepts Epic Center Ford Audio

Non Responsive Non Responsive

Tye Cunningham

Audio Visual & Event Production Srv 

RFB # 21023 Mike Milligan

DentonFt Worth Bedford Irving Dallas

Total Maintenance

Vendor warrants that a full inspection and inventory has 

Inventory list  MUST be provided

UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

UNIT PRICEUNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

$150.00

UNIT PRICE

$75.00

$75.00

$75.00

$75.00

UNIT PRICE

$300 per day

UNIT PRICE

$165 1st hour; $120 subsequently

$165 1st hour; $120 subsequently

$150

UNIT PRICE

37.50 per hour

UNIT PRICE

$37.50

$37.50

$37.50

$37.50

Non Responsive Non ResponsiveEvaluation 

Score Card

Audio Visual & Event Production Srv 

RFB # 21023

Ft Worth Bedford Irving Dallas Denton

Evaluation Criteria

Maximum 

Score Score Score Score Score Score

Price 40 0.00 0.00 9.16 40.00 30.00 

Technical Merit & Ability to Meet 

City's needs
40 0.00 0.00 40.00 38.00 32.00 

Past experience with the City of 

Grand Prairie or another 

municipality

15 0.00 0.00 15.00 15.00 7.50 

Local Business Presence 5 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total 100 0.00 0.00 64.16 93.00 69.50

Communication 

Concepts
Epic Center Ford Audio Mike Milligan Tye Cunningham

118

Item 13.



Fund/Activity Account:

Project Title:

Current Request:

1 2 3 2+3 1+3

ACCOUNT CURRENT AVAILABLE CURRENT REVISED AMENDED

DESCRIPTION BUDGET BALANCE REQUEST BALANCE BUDGET

60530 Small FFE $60,000 $17,803 $0 $17,803 $60,000

61041 Prof Engineering $23,560 $1,665 $0 $1,665 $23,560

61205 Environmental Remed $45,101 $1,462 $0 $1,462 $45,101

61405 Survey and Studies $3,402 $652 $0 $652 $3,402

63010 Bldgs and Grounds Maint $15,000 $2,572 $0 $2,572 $15,000

63125 Traffic Signals Maint $1,450 $1,450 $0 $1,450 $1,450

68270 Comm and Video Equip $38,572 $1,760 $0 $1,760 $38,572

68290 FFE $1,047,847 $207,898 $0 $207,898 $1,047,847

68380 Security Equip $114,162 $1 $0 $1 $114,162

68410 Data Processing Equip $299,302 $1 $0 $1 $299,302

68540 Construction $6,750,878 $175,701 $0 $175,701 $6,750,878

68560 Eng/Geo/Con $496,507 $0 $0 $0 $496,507

$0 $0

TOTAL $8,895,781 $410,965 $0 $410,965 $8,895,781

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET SUMMARY

405090 02002603

Municipal Complex Ph II

$0.00

119

Item 14.



Page 1 of 4 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/02/2021 

REQUESTER: Maxine Snow 

PRESENTER: Andy Henning, Senior Building and Construction Projects Manager 

TITLE: Change Order/Amendment No. 6 with Hill & Wilkinson General 

Contractors for City Hall Municipal Campus Phase Two construction 

work in the amount of $95,129.45 for masonic stone installation, added 

paint work, millwork relocation, mailroom relocation, glazing 

treatment, electrical upgrades required by code, punch list work 

resolution, security room enhancements and project closeout scope of 

work required to finalize phase 2 work 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

On June 4, 2019 the City Council awarded the Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) contract to 

Hill & Wilkinson General Contractors (19 9024) for pre construction services in the amount of 

zero dollars ($0).  This award provided for CMAR services including development of project 

estimates, preliminary construction schedules, value engineering proposals and constructability 

review during the Design Phase. 

Current Change Order/Amendment No. 6 in the amount of $95,129.45 is divided as follows: 

$3,820.30 for installation of a masonic stone for the City Hall Complex 

$37,867.85 for repainting level 1 of City Hall Central + miscellaneous HR/Finance additions 

$7,473.38 for millwork relocation work associated with the City Hall East cash vault 

$15,033.19 for relocation of the mailroom from City Hall West to City Hall East 

$322.46 for application of translucent film on an exterior window facing into the loading dock 

$4,539.54 for electrical circuit breaker upgrades to achieve new code requirements 

$3,010.18 for additional scope of work brought about during the punch list process 

$7,358.45 for added large screen security monitors in the main lobby security check point 

120

Item 14.



Page 2 of 4 

$15,704.10 for added scope of work associated with final project closeout 

Change Order/Amendment No. 1 in the amount of $6,215,173 was approved by City Council on 

December 17, 2019 (19 9613) and represented the Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for the 

scope of work defined in the Rouch Architects Construction Documents package as competitively 

bid by Subcontractors to Hill & Wilkinson General Contractors. Costs above and beyond the Hill 

& Wilkinson portion of the project addressed in Change Order/Amendment No. 1 included 

previously approved Construction Manager pre construction fees ($0) and an asbestos 

remediation allowance ($30,000); 5% contingency ($310,759); allowance for FF&E ($1,200,000); 

allowance for IT/data design and installation ($95,000); allowance for A/V equipment ($200,000); 

allowance for door access and security systems ($95,000); allowance for Oncor Electric power line 

relocation ($125,000); plus an allowance for construction testing ($25,000), all of which total the 

overall project budget of $8,295,932.  

Change Order/Amendment No. 2 in the amount of $109,179.10 was approved by City Council on 

June 2, 2020 (20 10026) and was comprised of the following: 

$7,980.98 for electrical panel LA 4 coordination with existing conditions 

$94,410.97 for electrical upgrades of existing equipment in order to meet all code requirements 

$528.84 for minor adjustments to landscape and civil engineering designs to coordinate both 

scopes 

$2,706.35 for change in length of HVAC slot diffusers required to allow proper air flow 

$3,551.96 for replacement of existing fire alarm strobes in City Hall West in order to allow new 

overall fire alarm system for all three (3) connected City Hall buildings to communicate seamlessly 

and report appropriately to the Grand Prairie Fire Department  

 

Change Order/Amendment No. 3 in the amount of $75,637.77 was approved by City Council on 

August 4, 2020 (20 10204) and was comprised of the following: 

$70,495.30 for additional structural steel supports, masonry supports and exterior stone material 

$2,083.41 for additional door, frame and hardware required   

$19,667.82 for a trench drain along the west side of the building due to moisture concerns  

$5,094.41 for added moisture barrier at exterior walls  

$14,950.65 for additional structure steel support due to existing conditions discovered 

$4,085.16 for further electrical code compliance upgrades of existing equipment  

$1,813.29 for raising of an existing rooftop mechanical unit to coordinate with new roof 

installation 

$3,915.56 for wood panel material and stain revisions above the public lobby transaction windows 

121

Item 14.



Page 3 of 4 

$1,894.96 for added metal stud framing and drywall to create a required soffit condition  

$48,069.22 credit for elimination of the potassium injection treatment 

$1,863.56 for added wood paneling framing support above the public lobby transaction windows  

$2,737.76 for ten revised hollow metal door frames to coordinate with the ceiling height reduction   

$4,894.89 credit for reimbursement for new furniture ordered due to water infiltration damage 

Change Order/Amendment No. 4 in the amount of $103,689.52 was approved by City Council on 

October 13, 2020 (20 10432) and was comprised of the following: 

$9,603.60 for millwork changes to lobby drawing review counter including added structural steel  

$7,361.04 for repair of an existing concrete grade beam that was discovered to be damaged 

$8,922.02 for concrete ramp work due to uncovered floor elevation conflict at southwest connector   

$4,545.99 for protective wall covering in conference rooms to prevent wall damage from chairs    

$1,917.99 for a curb drain to coordinate with existing grades and new concrete ramp construction    

$7,537.97 for added structural steel at east façade to address existing conditions lacking support  

$3,297.86 for concrete masonry block infill at hidden opening condition uncovered   

$70,837.11 for reinstatement of interior finish materials previously removed from lobby design 

$2,089.70 for additional manually operated roller shades at south facing lobby huddle rooms    

$2,406.92 credit for deletion of specialty breakroom equipment not required 

$10,016.84 credit for painting of the existing exterior masonry in lieu of stain due to existing 

condition of mortar material at the northeast wall area and all north wall square footage 

Change Order/Amendment No. 5 in the amount of $98,214.32 was approved by City Council on 

November 3, 2020 (20 10476) and was comprised of the following: 

$6,755.90 for plumbing work associated with relocation of the Atmos gas meter 

$28,244.65 for expanded landscaping within the area just to the east of City Hall West  

$29,359.81 for COVID 19 costs associated with monitoring construction workers daily for 3 

months  

$3,618.76 for painting revisions associated with the exposed ceiling in the entry lobby of City Hall 

East 

$1,960.85 for painting of screening supports along the west wall of City Hall East  

122

Item 14.



Page 4 of 4 

$16,927.57 for expanded landscaping to finish the area just south of phase 2 work now versus in 

phase 3   

$4,084.40 for existing door repairs and refinishing at the Transportation Management Center  

$8,127.18 for Fire Plan Review storage room revisions and additions  

$4,187.75 for additional floor preparation and leveling prior to tile installation due to existing 

conditions  

$34,891.37 for removal/reinstatement of the temporary construction yard on the Boze GPISD 

property  

$4,121.81 for electrical work required to meet code requirements per city inspector review   

$44,065.73 credit for signage costs not required by code  

Items applicable to performance by the Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) will be 

incorporated into the current Hill & Wilkinson General Contractors contract for a revised total 

contract in the amount of $6,697,023.16.  

This item was taken to the Finance and Government Committee on February 2, 2021 for their 

review and recommendation for approval. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Funding in the amount of $95,129.45 is available in Municipal Facilities Capital Projects Fund 

(405090) W.O. 02002603 (Municipal Complex Ph II)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

123

Item 14.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/02/2021 

REQUESTER: Mona Lisa Galicia 

PRESENTER: Becky Brooks, Chief Financial Officer; Cheryl De Leon, Deputy City 

Manager; Mona Lisa Galicia, City Secretary 

TITLE: Ordinance Calling a Bond Election for the Purpose of Providing Funds 

for Economic Development Throughout the City 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

An election will be held to authorize the City Council of the City of Grand Prairie to issue general 

obligation bonds to provide funds for promoting economic development throughout the City. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Funding is available in the FY General Fund City Manager’s budget (111210) Elections expense 

account (61365). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

124

Item 15.



101489265.1/1001146466  

AN ORDINANCE CALLING A BOND ELECTION TO BE HELD IN THE 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS; MAKING PROVISION FOR THE 

CONDUCT OF AN ELECTION; AND RESOLVING OTHER MATTERS 

INCIDENT AND RELATED TO SUCH ELECTION 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the Council) of the CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS 

(the City), located in Dallas County, Ellis County and Tarrant County, Texas hereby finds and 

determines that an election should be held on May 1, 2021, to determine whether the Council shall 

be authorized to issue general obligation bonds of the City in the amount and for the purposes 

hereinafter identified (the Election); and 

WHEREAS, the City will enter into election services contracts with the Dallas County 

Elections Administrator, the Ellis County Elections Administrator and the Tarrant County 

Elections Administrator, in accordance with the provisions of Subchapter D of Chapter 31, as 

amended, Texas Election Code, or other applicable law, pursuant to which the Elections 

Administrators will assist with certain aspects of the Election on the City’s behalf; 

WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds and determines that the necessity to promote 

economic development within the City necessitates that it is in the public interest to call and hold 

the Election at the earliest possible date to authorize the issuance of general obligation bonds for 

the purposes hereinafter identified; and 

WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds and determines that the holding of the Election is in 

the best interests of the residents of the City; now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS THAT: 

SECTION 1. The Election shall be held in the CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS on 

the 1st day of May, 2021 (Election Day), which is a uniform election date under the Texas Election 

Code, as amended, and is not less than 78 days nor more than 90 days from the date of the adoption 

of this ordinance (the Ordinance), for the purpose of submitting the following proposition to the 

qualified voters of the City: 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS PROPOSITION A 

“SHALL the City Council of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas be authorized to issue general 

obligation bonds of the City in the aggregate principal amount of $75,000,000 for the purpose of 

providing funds for promoting economic development throughout the City, through planning, 

designing, constructing, improving, extending and expanding public streets, utilities, and other 

infrastructure facilities, including the acquisition of land therefor, and through the City’s programs 

for economic development and housing including the acquisition of improved and unimproved 

properties, the demolition of existing structures, making grants, loans and otherwise providing 

assistance with bond proceeds to promote economic development and to stimulate business and 

commercial activity in the City for private commercial, industrial, retail, residential and mixed-

125

Item 15.



101489265.1/1001146466 -2- 

use development, hospitality and entertainment projects and neighborhood revitalization projects; 

such bonds to mature serially over a period not to exceed forty (40) years from their date, to be 

issued in such installments and sold at any price or prices and to bear interest at any rate or rates 

(fixed, floating, variable or otherwise) as shall be determined within the discretion of the City 

Council under laws in effect at the time of issuance and to provide for the payment of principal 

and interest on said bonds by levying a tax sufficient to pay the annual interest on and to create a 

sinking fund sufficient to redeem said bonds as they become due. 

SECTION 2. Pursuant to an agreement to be entered into with the Dallas County 

Elections Department, for that portion of the City located in Dallas County, the Ellis County 

Elections Department for that portion of the City located in Ellis County and the Tarrant County 

Elections Department for that portion of the City located in Tarrant County, the election shall be 

conducted by the Dallas County Elections Department, the Ellis County Elections Department and 

the Tarrant County Elections Department, respectively, in accordance with the provisions of the 

respective agreements for election services (the “Contracts”). 

The polling places for this election are shown in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference as a part of this Ordinance for all purposes.  The election officers 

and maximum number of clerks for each polling place shall be determined and appointed in 

accordance with the Contracts. 

On election day, the polls shall be open from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

SECTION 3. With respect to that portion of the City located in Dallas County, the 

locations, dates and times for early voting for this election shall be as shown in Exhibit B, which 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as a part hereof for all purposes.  Michael 

J. Scarpello, Dallas County Elections Administrator, is hereby appointed early voting clerk and 

shall appoint and designate deputy clerks at such early voting polling place in accordance with the 

agreement with the Dallas County Elections Department. 

With respect to that portion of the City located in Ellis County, the locations, dates and 

times for early voting for this election shall be as shown in Exhibit C, which is attached hereto 

and incorporated herein by reference as a part hereof for all purposes.  Jana Onyon, Ellis County 

Elections Administrator, is hereby appointed as early voting clerk and shall appoint and designate 

deputy clerks for early voting in accordance with the agreement with the Ellis County Elections 

Department. 

With respect to that portion of the City located in Tarrant County, the locations, dates and 

times for early voting for this election shall be as shown in Exhibit D, which is attached hereto 

and incorporated herein by reference as a part hereof for all purposes.  Heider I. Garcia, Tarrant 

County Elections Administrator, is hereby appointed as early voting clerk and shall appoint and 

designate deputy clerks for early voting in accordance with the agreement with the Tarrant County 

Elections Department. 

For purposes of processing ballots cast in early voting, the election officers for the early 

voting ballot board for this election shall be appointed and designated in accordance with the 

provisions of the Contracts. 

126

Item 15.



101489265.1/1001146466 -3- 

SECTION 4: With respect to voters of the City residing in Dallas County, the Central 

Counting Station for the tabulation and counting of ballots for this election shall be located at the 

Office of the Elections Department, 1520 Round Table Drive, Dallas, Texas and the Manager, 

Tabulation Supervisor, Presiding Judge and Alternate Presiding Judge at such Central Counting 

Station shall be determined, appointed and designated in accordance with the agreement with the 

Dallas County Elections Department.  The Manager and Presiding Judge of such Central Counting 

Station may appoint clerks to serve at such Station, as provided by Texas Election Code, Section 

127.006, as amended. 

With respect to voters of the City residing in Ellis County, the Central Counting Station 

for the tabulation and counting of ballots for this election shall be located at the Ellis County 

Election Department, 204 E. Jefferson Street, Waxahachie, Texas and the Manager, Tabulation 

Supervisor, Presiding Judge and Alternate Presiding Judge at such Central Counting Station shall 

be determined, appointed and designated in accordance with the agreement with the Ellis County 

Elections Department.  The Manager and Presiding Judge of such Central Counting Station may 

appoint clerks to serve at such Station, as provided by Section 127.006 of the Election Code, as 

amended. 

With respect to voters of the City residing in Tarrant County, the Central Counting Station 

for the tabulation and counting of ballots for this election shall be located at the Tarrant County 

Election Department, 2700 Premier Street, Fort Worth, Texas and the Manager, Tabulation 

Supervisor, Presiding Judge and Alternate Presiding Judge at such Central Counting Station shall 

be determined, appointed and designated in accordance with the agreement with the Tarrant 

County Elections Department.  The Manager and Presiding Judge of such Central Counting Station 

may appoint clerks to serve at such Station, as provided by Section 127.006 of the Election Code, 

as amended. 

SECTION 5. The official ballot shall be prepared in accordance with the Texas Election 

Code, as amended, so as to permit voters to vote “FOR” or “AGAINST” the aforesaid proposition 

which shall appear on the ballot substantially as follows: 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS PROPOSITION A 

“THE ISSUANCE OF $75,000,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS FOR 

PROMOTING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE CITY AND THE 

IMPOSITION OF A TAX SUFFICIENT TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND 

INTEREST ON THE BONDS” 

SECTION 6. All resident qualified voters of the City shall be permitted to vote at the 

Election, and on Election Day, such voters shall vote at the designated polling places.  The Election 

shall be held and conducted in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, including the 

provisions of the Texas Election Code, as amended, the Texas Government Code, as amended, 

including Chapter 1251 and as may be required by any other law.  To the extent required by law, 

all materials and proceedings relating to the Election shall be printed in both English, Spanish and 

Vietnamese. 

127

Item 15.



101489265.1/1001146466 -4- 

SECTION 7. Notice of election, including a Spanish and Vietnamese translation thereof, 

shall be published on the same day in each of two successive weeks in a newspaper of general 

circulation in the City, the first of these publications to appear in such newspaper not more than 

30 days, and not less than 14 days, prior to Election Day. Moreover, a substantial copy of this 

Ordinance and the voter information attached as Exhibit E, including a Spanish and Vietnamese 

translation thereof, shall be posted (i) at City Hall not less than 21 days prior to Election Day; (ii) 

at three additional public places within the City not less than 21 days prior to Election Day, (iii) in 

a prominent location at each polling place on Election Day and during early voting, and (iv) in a 

prominent location on the City’s internet website not less than 21 days prior to Election Day. A 

sample ballot shall be posted on the City’s internet website not less than 21 days prior to Election 

Day. 

SECTION 8. As required by and in accordance with Section 3.009(b)(5) and (7) through (9) of 

the Texas Election Code, the City, as of the date of this Ordinance, had outstanding an aggregate 

principal amount of debt equal to $311,330,000; the aggregate amount of the interest owed on 

such City debt obligations, through respective maturity, totaled $93,600,000; and the City levied 

an ad valorem debt service tax rate for its outstanding debt obligations of $404,930,000 per $100 

of taxable assessed valuation. The City estimates an ad valorem debt service tax rate of $0 per 

$100 of taxable assessed valuation if the bonds that are subject of the Election are approved and 

are issued the City, as of the date of this Ordinance, had outstanding an aggregate principal 

amount of debt equal to $311,330,000; the aggregate amount of the interest owed on such City 

debt obligations, through respective maturity, totaled $93,600,000; and the City levied an ad 

valorem debt service tax rate for its outstanding debt obligations of $.20936 per $100 of taxable 

assessed valuation. The City estimates an ad valorem debt service tax rate of $.20936 per $100 of 

taxable assessed valuation if the bonds that are subject of the Election are approved and are 

issued  (taking into account the outstanding City bonds and bonds that are the subject of this 

Election, but not future bond authorizations of the City). The bonds that are the subject of this 

Election shall mature serially or otherwise overall a specified number of years (not more than 40 

years from their date), as preserved by applicable Texas law, though the City estimates that, 

based on current bond market conditions, such bonds will amortize over a 30-year period from 

their respective date of issue. The foregoing estimated tax rate and amortization period are only 

estimates, provided for Texas statutory compliance, and do not serve as a cap on any City ad 

valorem tax rate or the amortization period for bonds that are the subject of this Election. 

 

SECTION 9. The Council authorizes the Mayor, the City Manager, or their respective 

designee, to negotiate and enter into one or more election agreements and/or similar contracts or 

agreements with Dallas County, Ellis  County and Tarrant County, acting by and through their 

respective Elections Administrators, as permitted and in accordance with the provisions of the 

Texas Election Code, as amended.  In addition, the City authorizes the Mayor, the City Manager, 

or their respective designee of either of such parties to make such technical modifications to this 

Ordinance that are necessary for compliance with applicable Texas or federal law or to carry out 

the intent of the Council, as evidenced herein. To the extent that any duty or obligation of the City, 

in general, or any City official, in particular, is properly delegated to the Dallas County, Ellis 

County and Tarrant County pursuant to an election agreement with such County, then the County’s 

carrying out those duties and obligations on the City’s behalf pursuant to the terms of such election 

agreement shall be binding upon the City and are hereby determined by the Council to be evidence 

128

Item 15.



101489265.1/1001146466 -5- 

of the City’s compliance with the provisions of applicable Texas law concerning the Election 

relative to the same.   

SECTION 10. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, 

and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a 

part of the judgment and findings of the Council. 

SECTION 11. All ordinances and resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or 

inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, 

and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters ordained 

herein. 

SECTION 12. This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws 

of the State of Texas and the United States of America. 

SECTION 13. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which 

this Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 

matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Ordinance, was 

given, all as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

SECTION 14. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person 

or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the application of 

such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and this Council 

hereby declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid provision. 

SECTION 15. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1201.028, as amended, Texas 

Government Code, this Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adoption. 

SECTION 16. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which 

this Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 

matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Ordinance, was 

given, all as required by Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, as amended and as in effect on 

the date hereof. 

SECTION 17. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 

adoption on the date shown below in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 1201.028, 

as amended. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on the ______ day of ___________________, 2021. 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS 

 

 

  

Ron Jensen 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

129

Item 15.



101489265.1/1001146466 -6- 

_______________________ 

Mona Lisa Galicia 

City Secretary 

(CITY SEAL) 

 

 

130

Item 15.



101489265.1/1001146466 A-1 

Exhibit A 

ELECTION DAY POLLING PLACES 

Election Day:  Saturday, May 1, 2021 

Election Day Polling Locations open from 7 a.m. to 7 p.m. 

Presiding Judge(s) and Alternate(s):  to be determined by the County Election Administrators 

 

Polling Locations 

Dallas County, Ellis County and Tarrant County participate in the Countywide Polling Place 

program under Section 43.007, as amended, Texas Election Code. Registered voters will be 

able to cast their Election Day ballots at any of the Vote Centers in the County of their 

residence. Locations will be identified and published in the forthcoming election notice. 

 

131

Item 15.



101489265.1/1001146466 B-2 

Exhibit B 

EARLY VOTING 

Early voting begins April 19, 2021 and ends on April 27, 2021. 

Dallas County Early Voting Clerk: Michael Scarpello, 1520 Round Table Drive, Dallas, Texas 

75247. 

Ellis County Early Voting Clerk: Jana Onyon, 204 E. Jefferson Street, Waxahachie, Texas 75165 

Tarrant County Early Voting Clerk:  Heider Garcia, 2700 Premier Street, Fort Worth, Texas 76111 

Presiding Judges of the Early Voting Ballot Boards: to be determined by the Administrators. 

Voters entitled to vote an early ballot by personal appearance may do so at any Early Voting site 

within the county of their residence. 

 

Main Early Voting Polling Place, Dates, and Times 

 

Branch Early Voting Polling Places, Dates, and Times will be determined by the Dallas, Tarrant 

and Ellis County Elections Administrators and published in the forthcoming election notice. 

 

Early Voting by Mail 

Polling Place Dates Times 

Dallas County April 19 – 23, Monday – Friday 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. 

1520 Round Table Drive, 

Dallas, Texas 75247 

April 24, Saturday 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. 

 April 25, Sunday 1:00 p.m. - 6:00 p.m. 

 April 26 – 27, Monday – Tuesday 7:00 a.m. - 7:00 p.m. 

Ellis County April 19 – 23, Monday – Friday 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. 

204 E. Jefferson Street, 

Waxahachie, Texas 75165 

April 24, Saturday 8:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m. 

 April 26 – 27, Monday – Tuesday 7:00 a.m. - 7:00 p.m. 

Tarrant County April 19 – 23, Monday – Friday 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. 

2700 Premier Street, Fort 

Worth, Texas 76111 

April 24, Saturday 7:00 a.m. - 7:00 p.m. 

 April 25, Sunday 11:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m. 

 April 26 – 27, Monday - Tuesday 7:00 a.m. - 7:00 p.m. 

132

Item 15.



101489265.1/1001146466 B-3 

Dallas County, Texas 

Applications for voting by mail should be received no later than the close of business (5:00 p.m.) 

on April 20, 2021. Applications should be sent to: 

1520 Round Table Drive, Dallas, Texas 75247 

phone: (469) 627-VOTE (8683) 

fax: (214) 819-6301 

email:  dallascountyvotes@dallascounty.org 

If an application for ballot by mail is faxed or emailed (or if a federal postcard application is faxed), 

the applicant must also mail the original application so that the early voting clerk receives the 

original no later than four days after receiving the emailed or faxed copy. 

Ellis County, Texas 

Applications for voting by mail should be received no later than the close of business (5:00 p.m.) 

on April 20, 2021. Applications should be sent to: 

204 E. Jefferson Street, Waxahachie, Texas 75165 

phone: 972-825-5195 

fax: 972-923-5194 

email: elections@co.ellis.tx.us 

If an application for ballot by mail is faxed or emailed (or if a federal postcard application is faxed), 

the applicant must also mail the original application so that the early voting clerk receives the 

original no later than four days after receiving the emailed or faxed copy. 

Tarrant County, Texas 

Applications for voting by mail should be received no later than the close of business (5:00 p.m.) 

on April 20, 2021. Applications should be sent to: 

2700 Premier Street, Fort Worth, Texas 76111 

phone:817-831-VOTE (8683) 

fax: 817-850-2344 

email:  votebymail@tarrantcounty.com 

If an application for ballot by mail is faxed or emailed (or if a federal postcard application is faxed), 

the applicant must also mail the original application so that the early voting clerk receives the 

original no later than four days after receiving the emailed or faxed copy. 

 

 

 

133

Item 15.



101489265.1/1001146466 C-1 

Exhibit C 

 

VOTER INFORMATION DOCUMENT 

 

Grand Prairie City, Texas Proposition A: 

 

□ FOR 

  (a favor) 

 

□ AGAINST 

  (en contra) 

 “THE ISSUANCE OF $75,000,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION 

BONDS FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FUNDS FOR 

PROMOTING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

THROUGHOUT THE CITY, THROUGH PLANNING, 

DESIGNING, CONSTRUCTING, IMPROVING, EXTENDING 

AND EXPANDING PUBLIC STREETS, UTILITIES, AND 

OTHER INFRASTRUCTURE FACILITIES, INCLUDING THE 

ACQUISITION OF LAND THEREFOR, AND THROUGH 

THE CITY’S PROGRAMS FOR ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING INCLUDING THE 

ACQUISITION OF IMPROVED AND UNIMPROVED 

PROPERTIES, THE DEMOLITION OF EXISTING 

STRUCTURES, MAKING GRANTS, LOANS AND 

OTHERWISE PROVIDING ASSISTANCE WITH BOND 

PROCEEDS TO PROMOTE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

AND TO STIMULATE BUSINESS AND COMMERCIAL 

ACTIVITY IN THE CITY FOR PRIVATE COMMERCIAL, 

INDUSTRIAL, RETAIL, RESIDENTIAL AND MIXED-USE 

DEVELOPMENT, HOSPITALITY AND ENTERTAINMENT 

PROJECTS AND NEIGHBORHOOD REVITALIZATION 

PROJECTS AND THE IMPOSITION OF A TAX SUFFICIENT 

TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON THE 

BONDS.” 

 

 

principal of debt obligations to be authorized $75,000,000 

 

estimated interest for the debt obligations to be authorized presuming 

an interest rate of ___3.0_____% 

$39,793,333  

 

estimated combined principal and interest required to pay on time 

and in full the debt obligations to be authorized amortized over 30 

years 

$ 114,793,333 

as of the date the election was ordered, principal of all outstanding 

debt obligations 

$311,300,000 

as of the date the election was ordered, the estimated interest on all 

outstanding debt obligations 

$93,600,000 

estimated combined principal and interest required to pay on time 

and in full all outstanding debt obligations amortized over 30 years 

$404,930,000 

134

Item 15.



101489265.1/1001146466 C-2 

estimated maximum annual increase in the amount of taxes on a 

residence homestead with a taxable value of $100,000 to repay the 

debt obligations to be authorized, if approved 

This figure assumes the amortization of the City’s debt obligations, 

including outstanding debt obligations and the proposed debt 

obligation; changes in estimated future appraised values within the 

City; and the assumed interest rate on the proposed debt obligations. 

$0 

 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 

 

135

Item 15.



Page 1 of 2 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

RESOLUTION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 02/2/2021 

REQUESTER: Becky L. Brooks 

PRESENTER: Becky L. Brooks 

TITLE: APPROVE RESOLUTION ADOPTING 2021 FINANCIAL 

MANAGEMENT POLICIES 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

ANALYSIS: 

Each year, the Finance department facilitates a review of the City’s overall Financial Management 

policies.  Having a formal set of financial management policies is not only industry best practice, but 

these policies guide the decision-making process of the organization leadership on items relevant to 

fiscal stewardship.  They are also a major aspect of our bond rating process, both from the existence of 

the policies, as well as our ability to comply with our stated guidelines. 

This year, the review included leadership from Budget, Public Works, Human Resources, Housing, 

Solid Waste, Internal Audit, Information Technology and Parks & Recreation.  Attached is a marked-up 

version to highlight any changes that are recommended.  Also attached is a ‘clean copy’ for final 

adoption which will be forwarded to City Council for 2/16 approval. 

Most of the changes are administrative clarification or edits, such as title changes, grammar, etc.  The 

more substantive changes include: (the reference is to the sections of the marked up copy, since some 

numbering formats will be different in the clean copy) 

 V.  F. Capital Lending Reserve – interest earnings are not allocated to this fund 

 V. G. Street Maintenance – updated frequency of assessment to annually 

 VI. F. Cost Benefit of Abatements – extended to include TIF/TIRZ reinvestment zones 

 VI. O. General and Administrative Charges – extend to include TIF/TIRZ and potentially special 

districts 

 VII. E. Purchasing – updated to reflect relevant codes 

 VII. I. Information Technology – updated to require lease agreements to be approved by Finance 

and to expand items identified to be paid from other funds. 

 VIII. D. Risk Management Reserves – expanded to increase contingency reserves as previously 

reviewed by F&G 

 XII. C. Budgeting (for Grants) – removed some unclear and somewhat redundant language.     

136

Item 16.



Page 2 of 2 

 

City Management and staff recommend adoption of the attached resolution. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

NONE 

 

BODY 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, APPROVING THE CITY’S 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES 

 

WHEREAS,  a comprehensive set of financial management policies is an industry best practice, an 

important governance tool, and a strong signal to the municipal bond credit market as to the City’s fiscal 

stewardship and management; 

WHEREAS,  each year, city management and an interdisciplinary team of staff review the overall 

financial management policies of the city for applicability and refinement and submit for governance 

approval; 

WHEREAS,  the 2021 review resulted in minor administrative edits and few substantive changes that 

were identified and covered; and 

WHEREAS,  the Finance and Government Committee reviewed and adopted these policies on 

2/2/2021 with approval to submit to City Council. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS THAT: 

SECTION 1.  The City Council hereby adopts the attached Financial Management Policy 

SECTION 2.  This resolution shall be in force immediately upon its passage in accordance with 

the Charter of the City of Grand Prairie and it is accordingly so resolved. 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS, FEBRUARY 16, 2021. 

137

Item 16.



 

 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES 

February 2nd, 2021 

Prepared by the Finance Department 
 

  

  

138

Item 16.



 

 

2 

 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES 

 

 

Table of Contents 
I. PURPOSE STATEMENT ........................................................................................................ 3 

II. ACCOUNTING, AUDITING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING ........................................ 3 

III. INTERNAL CONTROLS ........................................................................................................ 4 

IV. OPERATING BUDGET .......................................................................................................... 5 

V. CAPITAL BUDGET AND PROGRAM ................................................................................. 5 

VI. REVENUE MANAGEMENT .................................................................................................. 7 

VII. EXPENDITURE CONTROL .................................................................................................. 9 

VIII. ASSET MANAGEMENT ....................................................................................................... 13 

IX. FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESERVES ................................................................... 13 

X. DEBT MANAGEMENT ........................................................................................................ 17 

XI. STAFFING AND TRAINING ............................................................................................... 17 

XII. GRANTS .................................................................................................................................. 17 

XIII. ANNUAL REVIEW & REPORTING .................................................................................. 20 

 

 

 

  

  

139

Item 16.



 

 

3 

 

I.   PURPOSE STATEMENT  
  

These policies are developed by the City Manager to guide the Chief Financial Officer, Audit Services 

Director, Budget Director, and other department staff in all financial matters.  The overriding goal of the 

Financial Management Policies is to enable the City to achieve a long-term stable and positive financial 

condition while conducting its operations consistent with the Council—Manager form of government 

established in the City Charter.  The watchwords of the City’s financial management include integrity, 

prudent stewardship, planning, accountability, and full disclosure.  

The purpose of the Financial Management Policies is to provide guidelines for the financial management 

staff in planning and directing the City’s day-to-day financial affairs and in developing recommendations 

to the City Manager.  The scope of the policies spans accounting, auditing, financial reporting, internal 

controls, operating and capital budgeting, revenue management, cash management, expenditure control, 

and debt management. 

 

II.   ACCOUNTING, AUDITING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING  
  

A. ACCOUNTING - The City Controller is responsible for establishing the chart of accounts, and 

for properly recording financial transactions. 

 

B.  FUNDS - Self-balancing groups of accounts are used to account for City financial transactions in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  Each fund is created for a specific 

purpose except for the General Fund which is used to account for all transactions not accounted 

for in other funds.  Funds are created and fund names are changed by City Council approval either 

through resolution during the year or in the City Council’s approval of the annual operating or 

capital budget ordinances. 

 

C. EXTERNAL AUDITING - The City will be audited annually by outside independent auditors.  

The auditors must be a CPA firm of national reputation and must demonstrate that they have the 

breadth and depth of staff to conduct the City’s audit in accordance with generally accepted 

auditing standards, generally accepted government auditing standards, and contractual 

requirements.  The auditors’ report on the City’s financial statements including federal grants 

(single audit) will be completed within 180 days of the City’s fiscal year end, and the auditors’ 

management letter will be presented to the City staff within 180 days after the City’s fiscal year 

end.  Staff will attempt to complete the reports prior to this, with a reach goal of 120 days. An 

interim management letter will be issued prior to this date if any materially significant internal 

control weaknesses are discovered.  The City staff and auditors will jointly review the management 

letter with the City Council Finance and Government Committee and City Council within sixty 

(60) days of its receipt by the staff. 

 

D.  EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY TO CITY COUNCIL - The external auditors 

are accountable to the City Council and will have access to direct communication with the City 

Council if the City staff is unresponsive to auditor recommendations or if the auditors consider 

such communication necessary to fulfill their legal and professional responsibilities.  

  

140

Item 16.



 

 

4 

 

The City Council Finance and Government Committee will conduct at least one closed session 

annually with the auditors present without the presence of City staff.  Such meeting shall be 

conducted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act. 

  

E.  EXTERNAL AUDITOR ROTATION - The City will not require external auditor rotation but 

will circulate requests for proposal for audit services periodically, normally at five-year intervals. 

The City will also consider periodic partner in charge rotations if continuing with existing 

auditors past five years. 

  

F.  INTERNAL AUDITING - The City Manager established an internal audit function February 1, 

1989.  The Audit Services Director reports to the City Manager’s office.  The annual work plan 

for internal audit includes compliance test work and performance auditing along with designated 

special projects.  The internal audit work plan is approved annually by the City Manager’s office 

and by the Finance and Government Committee. 

 

G.  EXTERNAL FINANCIAL REPORTING - The City will prepare and publish a 

comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR).  The CAFR will be prepared in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles and will be presented annually to the Government 

Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for evaluation and awarding of the Certification of 

Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.  The CAFR will be published and presented 

to the City Council within 180 days after the end of the fiscal year.  City staffing limitations may 

preclude such timely reporting.  In such case, the Chief Financial Officer will inform the City 

Manager and the City Manager will inform the City Council of the delay and the reasons 

therefore.  

 

H. INTERNAL FINANCIAL REPORTING - The Finance and Budget departments will provide 

internal financial information, via online access or reports, sufficient for management to plan, 

monitor, and control the City’s financial affairs.  Internal financial reporting objectives are 

addressed throughout these policies.  

  

III.  INTERNAL CONTROLS  
 

A. WRITTEN PROCEDURES - The Chief Financial Officer and Audit Services Director are 

responsible for developing City-wide written guidelines on accounting, cash handling, and other 

financial matters which will be approved by the City Manager and Finance and Governance (F&G) 

Committee. Annually, the City Manager and F&G committee will approve the Internal Audit work 

plan. Projects on the work plan will be reviewed quarterly by the F&G committee. 

 

 The Finance Department will assist department managers as needed in tailoring these guidelines 

into detailed written procedures to fit each department’s requirements.  

 

B.  INTERNAL AUDIT – Audit Services will conduct reviews of the departments to determine if 

the departments are following the written guidelines as they apply to the departments.  They will 

also review the written guidelines on accounting, cash handling, and other financial matters.  Based 

on these reviews, Audit Services will recommend internal control improvements as needed.  

 

141

Item 16.



 

 

5 

 

C. DEPARTMENT MANAGERS’ RESPONSIBILITY - Department Managers’ responsibilities 

to the City Manager are to ensure that good internal controls are followed throughout his or her 

department, that all guidelines on accounting and internal controls are implemented, and that all 

independent and internal auditor internal control recommendations are addressed. 

 

IV.  OPERATING BUDGET  
 

A. PREPARATION - The City’s “operating budget” is the City’s annual financial operating plan. 
The operating budget’s basis of accounting will be cash or modified accrual and reconciled to the 

annual audit  The budget is prepared by the Budget Office with the cooperation of all City 

Departments and is submitted to the City Manager who makes any necessary changes and 

transmits the document to the City Council. The budget should be presented to the City Council 

no later than six (6) weeks prior to fiscal year end and should be enacted by the City Council prior 

to fiscal year end. 

  

B. BALANCED BUDGETS - The operating budgets will be balanced with current revenues, 

exclusive of beginning resources, greater than or equal to current expenditures/expenses. Funds 

deemed at risk will be updated either monthly or quarterly to the Finance and Government 

Committee.  

  

C. PLANNING - The budget process will be coordinated so as to identify major policy issues for City 

Council consideration several months prior to the budget approval date.  The Budget Office will 

work closely with the Finance and Government Committee in order to review all budgeted funds 

prior to submitting a proposed budget to the entire City Council.  

  

D. REPORTING – Monthly financial reports will be prepared and made available to Department 

Managers for use in managing their budgets and to enable the Budget Director to monitor and 

control the budget as authorized by the City Manager. 

 

E.  CONTROL - Operating expenditure controls are addressed throughout these policies.  

 

V.   CAPITAL BUDGET AND PROGRAM  
 

A.  PREPARATION - The City’s capital budget will include all capital project funds and all capital 

resources, excluding TIFs, PIDs, grants, and other unique projects.  This budget will be prepared 

annually on a fiscal year basis and adopted by ordinance.  The capital budget will be prepared by 

the Budget Office with the involvement of all required City departments. 

  

B.  CONTROL - All capital project expenditures must be appropriated in the capital budget, 

excluding TIFs, PIDs, grants, and other unique projects.  The Budget Office must certify the 

availability of resources so an appropriation can be made before a capital project contract is 

presented by the City Manager to the City Council for approval.  

 

C.  PROGRAM PLANNING - The capital budget will include plans for a capital improvements 

program for future years.  The planning time frame should be at least five years.  The replacement 

and maintenance for capital items should also be projected for the next 5 years.  Future 

142

Item 16.



 

 

6 

 

maintenance and operations will be fully costed, so that these costs can be considered in the 

operating budget.  

 

D. ALTERNATE RESOURCES - Where applicable, assessments, impact fees, and/or other user-

based fees should be used to fund capital projects which have a primary benefit to certain property 

owners. 

  

E. DEBT FINANCING - Recognizing that debt is usually a more expensive financing method, 

alternative financing sources will be explored before debt is issued.  When debt is issued, it will 

be used to acquire and/or construct major capital assets with expected lives equal to or exceeding 

the average life of the debt issue.  The exceptions to this requirement are the traditional costs of 

marketing and issuing the debt, capitalized labor for the design and construction of capital projects, 

and small component parts which are attached to major equipment purchases.  The City’s debt 

policy will guide the use and extent of debt financing. 

  

F.  CAPITAL AND LENDING RESERVE FUND 

  The City established a Capital and Lending Reserve Fund in December, 2009 which is monitored 

by the Budget department and accounted for by the Finance Department separately from all other 

funds.  There are no set funding sources; however, contributions may be added to this fund by 

recommendation of the City Manager’s Office (CMO) and the Finance and Government 

Committee and must be approved by the City Council.   

 

     Expenditures and disbursements from the Capital Lending and Reserve Fund must be authorized 

and approved by City Council action following recommendations by the City Manager’s Office 

and the Finance and Government Committee.  A plan to replenish the fund over a reasonable time 

frame will be included in this authorization.  There may be one-time uses that will not be repaid. 

 

G.  STREET MAINTENANCE - The City recognizes that deferred street maintenance increases 

future capital costs by an estimated 5 to 10 times.  In 2017, the city voted ¼ cent of its sales tax 

and dedicated those revenues to street maintenance. Additionally, the city devotes PILOT and 

franchise fee revenue to street maintenance.  A street maintenance paving assessment is done 

annually.  The city reserves 10% of sales tax revenues for this purpose. 

 

H.  WATER/WASTEWATER MAIN REHABILITATION AND REPLACEMENT - The City 

recognizes that deferred water/wastewater main rehabilitation and replacement increases future 

costs due to loss of potable water from water mains and inflow and infiltration into wastewater 

mains.  Therefore, to ensure that the rehabilitation and replacement program is adequately funded, 

the City’s will annually appropriate cash as available.   

 

I.  GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL RESERVE - A reserve will be maintained for general 

governmental capital projects. The reserve will be funded with General Fund operating surpluses.  

The reserve will be used for, for major capital outlay, and for unplanned projects.  As soon as 

practicable after each fiscal year end when annual operating results are known, any General Fund 

operating surplus in excess of budget which is not required to meet ending resources requirements 

may be transferred to the reserve with the approval of the City Council.   

 

143

Item 16.



 

 

7 

 

J.  REPORTING - Monthly financial information will be available to enable Department Managers 

to manage their capital budgets and to enable the Budget Office to monitor the capital budget as 

authorized by the City Manager.  

 

VI.  REVENUE MANAGEMENT  
 

A.  SIMPLICITY - The City will strive to keep the revenue system simple which will result in a 

 decrease of compliance costs for the taxpayer or service recipient and a corresponding decrease 

 in avoidance to pay.   

 

B.  CERTAINTY - An understanding of the revenue source increases the reliability of the revenue 

system.  The City will try to understand its revenue sources and enact consistent collection policies 

so that assurances can be provided that the revenue base will materialize according to budgets and 

plans. 

  

C.  EQUITY - The City will strive to maintain equity in the revenue system structure.  That is, the 

City will seek to minimize or eliminate all forms for subsidization between entities, funds, services, 

utilities, and customers.  However, it is recognized that public policy decisions may lead to 

subsidies in certain circumstances, e.g., senior citizen property tax exemptions or partial property 

tax abatement.  

 

D.  ADMINISTRATION - The benefits of revenue will exceed the cost of producing the revenue.  

The cost of collection will be reviewed for cost effectiveness as a part of the indirect cost and cost 

of services analysis.  Where appropriate, the City will use the administrative processes of State or 

Federal collection agencies in order to reduce administrative costs.  

 

E.  REVENUE ADEQUACY - The City will require that there be a balance in the revenue system.  

That is, the revenue base will have the characteristic of fairness and neutrality as it applies to cost 

of service, willingness to pay, and ability to pay.  

 

F. COST/BENEFIT OF ABATEMENT AND REINVESTMENT ZONES - The City will use due 

caution in the analysis of any tax, fee, or water and wastewater incentives that are used to 

encourage development.  Ideally, a cost/benefit (fiscal impact) analysis will be performed as a part 

of such analysis. Annually, the City will also assess the current boundaries, revenues, and 

participation levels of the tax increment reinvestment zones and determine their ongoing viability. 

The City will include administrative costs in the use of TIRZ revenues.   The City will follow an 

overall economic development program as authorized by the City Manager. 

 

  

G. DIVERSIFICATION AND STABILITY - In order to protect the government from fluctuations 

in a revenue source due to fluctuations in the economy, and variations in weather, (in the case of 

water and wastewater), a diversified revenue system will be maintained across the organization.  

 

H. NON-RECURRING REVENUES - One-time revenues will not be used for ongoing operations.  

Non-recurring revenues will be used only for non-recurring expenditures.  Care will be taken not 

to use these revenues for budget balancing purposes.  

  

144

Item 16.



 

 

8 

 

I.  PROPERTY TAX REVENUES - Property shall be assessed at 100% of the taxable value as 

appraised by the Dallas Central, Ellis, and Tarrant Appraisal Districts.  Reappraisals and 

reassessments shall be completed as required by State law.  A 99.5% collection rate will serve as 

a target budget for tax collections with a delinquency rate of 1% or less barring extraordinary 

circumstances. The 99.5% rate is calculated by dividing total current year tax collections for a 

fiscal year by the total tax levy for the fiscal year. All delinquent taxes will be aggressively 

pursued.  Delinquencies greater than 150 days will be turned over to the City Attorney or a private 

attorney, and a penalty assessed to compensate the attorney as allowed by state law and in 

accordance with the attorney’s contract.  Annual performance criteria will be developed for the 

attorney. 

 

J.  PARKS AND RECREATION VENUE SALES TAX REVENUE – Parks and Recreation 

Venue sales tax revenue shall supplement, but not supplant, the funding for the Parks and 

Recreation System which was in place prior to 2000.  No more than 49.99% of Parks and 

Recreation Venue sales tax revenue may be used for operations.  At least 50.01% of the revenue 

will be dedicated to capital expenditures and debt service for Parks and Recreation System 

improvements and for associated reserves.  

 

K. EMPLOYEE INSURANCE FUND – Since a portion of the revenue in the Employee Insurance 

Fund is deducted from employee paychecks for the specific purpose of providing health and life 

insurance coverage, no funds shall ever be transferred out of this fund to be used for any other 

purpose.  Any additional contingency will be budgeted in the Risk Fund for added flexibility. The 

Finance and Government Committee will review the status of the fund no less than quarterly. 

 

L.  USER-BASED FEES - For services associated with a user fee or charge, the direct and indirect 

costs of that service will be offset by a fee where possible.  There will be a review of fees and 

charges to ensure that fees provide adequate coverage of costs of services.  User charges may be 

classified as “full cost recovery”, “partial cost recovery”, and “minimal cost recovery”, based upon 

City Council policy.  

 

M. IMPACT FEES - Impact fees will be imposed for water and wastewater, in accordance with the 

requirements of state law.  The staff working with the Impact Fee Advisory Committee (Planning 

and Zoning Commission) shall prepare a semi-annual report on the capital improvement plans and 

fees.  Additionally, the impact fees will be re-evaluated at least every five years as required by 

law.  

 

N.  IN-LIEU-OF PROPERTY TAX - The in-lieu-of-property-tax paid by the Water/Wastewater and 

Solid Waste funds will be dedicated solely to street maintenance and improvements.  

 

O.  GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES - A method will be maintained whereby the 

General Fund can impose a charge to the enterprise funds for general and administrative services 

(indirect costs) performed on the enterprise funds’ behalf.  The details will be documented in the 

annual indirect cost study or staff analysis. This process may also apply to TIRZ/TIF funds and 

other support to special districts, as directed by the City Manager. 

 

P.  UTILITY RATES - The City will review utility rates annually, and if necessary, adopt new rates 

that will generate revenues required to fully cover operating expenditures, meet the legal 

restrictions of all applicable bond covenants, and provide for an adequate level of working capital 

145

Item 16.



 

 

9 

 

needs.  This policy does not preclude drawing down cash balance to finance current operations.  

However, it is best that any extra cash balance be used instead to finance capital projects.  

   

Q.  INTEREST INCOME - Interest earned from investment of available monies will accumulate in 

a Pooled Investment Fund to use for special projects as approved by the City Manager and City 

Council.  In specific instances or where required by law (such as forfeiture funds), interest may be 

assigned to a particular fund or account. The activity in the pooled investment fund will be reported 

in accordance with city investment policies as reviewed and adopted annually by City Council.    

 

R. REVENUE MONITORING - Revenues actually received will be regularly compared to budgeted 

revenues, and variances will be investigated.  This process will be summarized in the appropriate 

budget report.  

 

S.  SALES TAX REVENUE – The State Comptrollers’ Office collects, administers, and disburses 

this revenue each month.  The Budget Office monitors and reports this activity reflecting any 

Economic Development Agreements, state audit adjustments, and refunds made to the gross 

collections.  These adjustments are prorated back to other sales taxing entities (Crime Control & 

Prevention District, Park Venue, Streets, and Epic) that currently exist and have not been 

dissolved.  The General fund may absorb any adjustment variances among the sales tax entities 

that may result due to dissolutions.   

  

 

VII.  EXPENDITURE CONTROL  
  

A. APPROPRIATIONS – Appropriations are budgeted at the fund level.  If budget amendments 

(increase in appropriations) are necessary, they must be approved by the City Council.  Budget 

adjustments (transfers between line items within the same fund) are allowed as long as the 

adjustments do not exceed the total budgeted appropriations for that fund.   

 

B. VACANCY SAVINGS AND CONTINGENCY ACCOUNT - The General Fund Contingency 

Account will be budgeted at a minimal amount ($50,000).  The contingency account balance for 

expenditures will be increased monthly by the amount of available salary vacancy savings.   

 

C. CONTINGENCY ACCOUNT EXPENDITURES - The City Council must approve all 

contingency account expenditures of $50,000 or more, as discussed under Purchasing.  While no 

approval is required, the City Council will be informed of General Fund contingency account 

expenditures of $5,000 or more by memorandum in the monthly reports.  The Budget Office is 

responsible for submitting this memorandum to the City Manager based on information submitted 

by the spending department.  

 

D. CENTRAL CONTROL - Significant vacancy (salary) and capital budgetary savings in any 

department will be centrally controlled; and, may not be spent by the department without City 

Manager authorization.  

 

E. PURCHASING – All purchases shall be in accordance with the City’s purchasing policies as 

defined in the Purchasing Policy. City procurements are governed by state and federal law, as well 

as the city Code of Ordinances. The primary Texas Statutes that pertain to Purchasing are: 

146

Item 16.



 

 

10 

 

 TEX. LOC. GOV’T CODE: 

o § 176 Disclosure of Certain Relationships with Local Government Officers; Providing 

Public Access to Certain Information 

o § 252  Purchasing and Contracting Authority of Municipalities 

o § 271  Purchasing and Contracting Authority of Municipalities, Counties, and Certain 

Other Local Governments 

o § 302  Energy Saving Performance Contracts for Local Governments 

 TEX. GOV’T CODE: 

o §   791  Interlocal Cooperation Contracts 

o § 2155  Purchasing: General Rules and Procedures 

o § 2156  Purchasing Methods 

o § 2158  Purchasing: Miscellaneous Provisions for Purchase of Certain Goods & Services 

o § 2161  Historically Underutilized Businesses 

o § 2252  Contracts with Governmental Entity 

o § 2253  Public Work Performance and Payment Bonds 

o § 2254  Professional and Consulting Services 

o § 2258  Prevailing Wage Rates 

o § 2267  Public and Private Facilities and Infrastructure 

o § 2269  Contracting and Delivery Procedures for Construction Projects 

 

Strong ethical standards are required at all levels of the purchasing function. Purchasing personnel 

and City departmental staff face the challenging task of developing good vendor relations and 

encouraging vendor competition while avoiding even the appearance of favoritism or other ethical 

misconduct. 

 

Criminal penalties are associated with attempts to avoid compliance with the state procurement 

laws, as detailed below. 

 

Local Government Code Section 252 

Sec. 252.062.  CRIMINAL PENALTIES 

 

(a) A municipal officer or employee commits an offense if the officer or employee intentionally 

or knowingly makes or authorizes separate, sequential or component purchases to avoid the 

competitive bidding requirements of Section 252.021.  An offense under this subsection is a 

Class B misdemeanor. 

 

(b) A municipal officer or employee commits an offense if the officer or employee intentionally 

or knowingly violates Section 252.021, other than by conduct described by Subsection (a).  An 

offense under this subsection is a Class B misdemeanor. 

CLASS B MISDEMEANOR.  An individual adjudged guilty of a Class B misdemeanor 

shall be punished by: 

 

(1)  a fine not to exceed $2,000; 

(2)  confinement in jail for a term not to exceed 180 days;  or 

(3)  both such fine and confinement 

 

147

Item 16.



 

 

11 

 

(c) A municipal officer or employee commits an offense if the officer or employee intentionally 

or knowingly violates this chapter, other than by conduct described by Subsection (a) or (b).  

An offense under this subsection is a Class C misdemeanor. 

 

CLASS C MISDEMEANOR.  An individual adjudged guilty of a Class C misdemeanor 

shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $500. 

 

Sec. 252.063.  REMOVAL; INELIGIBILITY. 

 

(a) The final conviction of a municipal officer or employee for an offense under Section 

252.062(a) or (b) results in the immediate removal from office or employment of that person. 

 

(b) For four years after the date of the final conviction, the removed officer or employee is 

ineligible:   

(1) To be a candidate for or to be appointed or elected to a public office in this state; 

(2) To be employed by the municipality with which the person served when the offense 

occurred; and 

(3) To receive any compensation through a contract with that municipality. 

 

(c) This section does not prohibit the payment of retirement or workers’ compensation benefits to 

the removed officer or employee. 

 

Several purchasing practices may appear as attempts to avoid compliance with procurement 

laws.  They are making component, separate or sequential purchases and are explained below. 

 

“Component purchases” usually is an attempt to circumvent bid or proposal laws or other 

requirements by buying items or services through the issuance of multiple purchase orders for the 

component parts or services of the item versus issuing a single purchase order for the entire item 

or service.  Repeated purchases of additional optional equipment or parts after an initial purchase 

may create the perception of component purchasing.  An example of “Component purchasing” for 

an item would be to place an order for a mower under one Purchase Order and then place an order 

for an attachment for the mower under a different Purchase Order.  An example of “Component 

purchases” for a service would be to place an order to have the grass mowed and place another 

order to have the weeds pulled, and another separate order to have the area edged.   

 

“Separate purchases” are very similar to “component purchases” but are usually less likely to be 

a direct attempt to circumvent bid or proposal laws or other statutory/policy requirements.  Items 

or services that are purchased under separate orders that should be ordered under a single purchase 

order or contract could be considered “separate purchases”.  An example of “separate purchases” 

would be to place an order with one vendor to perform construction framing services; place a 

separate order with another vendor to install sheet rock; place a separate order with another vendor 

to paint; and etc. Another example of “separate purchases” would be to place an order with a 

vendor to document management system for department “A” and then place a separate order for 

document management system for another department. 

148

Item 16.



 

 

12 

 

“Sequential purchases” of like items or services over the course of a consecutive 365 day period 

may exceed the state competitive procurement requirements.  In some cases sequential purchasing 

is unintentional.  It may result from needs that could not be anticipated.  It may also result from 

lack of centralization of the purchasing function as one department may not know that another 

department is purchasing the same goods or services.   However, some sequential purchasing is 

intentional, and must be avoided at all costs.  A good example of “Sequential purchasing” would 

be office supplies.  Many departments do not individually purchase office supplies in values that 

exceed the limits of competitive procurement requirements.  However, the value of office supplies 

purchased by all City departments far exceeds the limits at which competitive bidding is required.  

This is one reason that the Purchasing Division solicits bids and awards annual price agreement 

contracts for items and services.  Operating departments are encouraged to bring to the 

attention of Purchasing any items or services that are not on a price agreement contract and 

for which the anticipated usage will be near or exceed the $50,000 threshold. 
  

F. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - Professional Services Contracts consist of the following 

services: Certified Public Accountant, Architect, Physician, Optometrist, Surgeon, Surveyor, 

Professional Engineer, Interior Designer, Insurance, Real Estate Appraisers,  Professional services 

will generally be processed through a request for qualifications or proposals process, except for 

smaller contracts.  The City Manager may execute any professional services contract except for 

insurance less than $50,000 provided there is an appropriation for such contract.  While City 

Council approval of other contracts less than $50,000 is not required, the Budget Office will inform 

the City Manager and the City Council whenever a professional services contract of $5,000 or 

more is approved.   

 

G.  PROMPT PAYMENT - All invoices will be paid within 30 days of receipt in accordance with 

the prompt payment requirements of State law.  Procedures will be used to take advantage of all 

purchase discounts where considered cost effective.  However, payments will also be reasonably 

delayed in order to maximize the City’s investable cash, where such delay does not violate the 

agreed upon payment terms.  

 

H.  EQUIPMENT FINANCING - Equipment may be financed when the unit purchase price is 

 $10,000 or more and the useful life is at least two years.  General Fund equipment financing and 

equipment for the Parks and Recreation programs that were funded in the General Fund prior to 

fiscal year 2000 will be accounted for in the Equipment Acquisition Fund, along with related 

professional services costs including long range plans and studies.  

 

I.   INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY –  
Certain information technology acquisitions will be centrally funded from the Information 

Technology (I/T) Capital Project Fund.  Acquisitions from this fund may include all related 

professional services costs for researching and/or implementing an information technology 

project.  Lease cost is also an eligible expense; lease agreements much be pre-approved by Finance 

Department. 

  

Items to be paid for in other funds include: The cost of repair and maintenance, supplies and 

replacement parts; acquisition of radios, telephones, computer equipment and  mobile devices; on-

going personnel costs; and, items acquired for a new position which will be budgeted with the 

position.  

149

Item 16.



 

 

13 

 

 

Annual funding of between $250,000 and $500,000 for replacements and between $250,000 and 

$500,000 for new technology will be provided through transfers from the General Fund and Water 

Wastewater Fund based on the relative amount of their budgeted ending resources.    

 

Additional funding above the base amount may be provided for major projects with available one-

time sources including debt proceeds.  

  

VIII.   ASSET MANAGEMENT  
  

A. INVESTMENTS - The City’s investment practices will be conducted in accordance with the City 

Council approved Investment Policies. 

  

B.  CASH MANAGEMENT - The City’s cash flow will be managed to ensure all expenses can be 

paid with cash on hand. 

 

C. INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE - A quarterly report on investment performance will be 

provided by the Chief Financial Officer to the City Manager for submission to the City Council.  

 

D. FIXED ASSETS AND INVENTORY - These assets will be reasonably safeguarded and properly 

accounted for, and prudently insured.  

 

IX.  FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESERVES  
  

A. NO OPERATING DEFICITS - Current expenditures will be paid with current revenues.  

Deferrals, short-term loans, or one-time sources will be avoided as budget balancing techniques.  

Reserves will be used only for emergencies or non-recurring expenditures, except when balances 

can be reduced because their levels exceed guideline minimums. 

 

B. INTERFUND LOANS - Non-routine interfund loans shall be made only in emergencies when 

other temporary sources of working capital are not available and with the approval of the City 

Council.  At the time an interfund loan is considered, a repayment plan prior to fiscal year end 

shall also be considered.  A fund will only lend money that it will not need to spend for the next 

365 days.  A loan may be made from a fund only if the fund has ending resources in excess of the 

minimum requirement for the fund.  Loans will not be made from the City’s enterprise funds 

(Water/Wastewater, Solid Waste, etc.) except for projects related to the purpose of the fund.  Total 

interfund loans outstanding from a fund shall not exceed 15% of the target fund balance for the 

fund.  If any interfund loan is to be repaid from the proceeds of a future debt issue, a proper 

reimbursement resolution will be approved at the time the loan is authorized.  

 

C. OPERATING RESERVES – A key element of the financial stability of the City is to establish 

guidelines for fund balance.  Unassigned fund balance is an important measure of economic 

stability.  It is essential that the City maintain adequate levels of unassigned fund balance to 

mitigate financial risk that can occur from unforeseen revenue fluctuations, unanticipated 

expenditures and similar circumstances.  Fund balance also provides cash flow liquidity for the 

City’s general questions.   

 

150

Item 16.



 

 

14 

 

Definitions: 

Fund Equity is generally the difference between its assets and liabilities.  Fund Balance is an 

accounting distinction made between the portions of fund equity that are spendable and non-

spendable.  These are broken up into five categories: 

 

(1) Non-spendable includes amounts that are not in a spendable form or required to be maintained 

intact (i.e., Inventory, prepaid assets, permanent funds, etc.). 

 

(2) Restricted includes amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes either constitutionally 

or through enabling legislation (e.g., grants and child safety fees). 

 

(3) Committed includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a 

formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority.  Commitments 

may be changed or lifted only by the government taking the same formal action that imposed 

the constraint originally. 

 

The City Council is the highest level of decision-making authority and the formal action that 

is required to be taken to establish, modify, or rescind a fund balance commitment is a 

resolution approved by the Council.  The resolution must either be approved or rescinded, as 

applicable, prior to the last day of the fiscal year for which the commitment is made.  The 

amount subject to the constraint may be determined in the subsequent period.   

 

(4) Assigned comprises amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposes.  

Intent can be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing 

body delegates the authority.  In governmental funds (other than the General Fund), assigned 

fund balance represents the amount that is not restricted or committed.  This indicates that 

resources in these funds are, at a minimum, intended to be used for the purpose of that fund. 

 

The City Council has authorized the City Manager as the official authorized to assign fund 

balance to a specific purpose as approved by the fund balance policy.   

   

(5) Unassigned is the residual classification of the general fund and includes all amounts not 

contained in other classifications.  Unassigned amounts are technically available for any 

purpose.   

 

Failure to meet the minimum unassigned fund balance will be disclosed to the City Council 

as soon as the situation is recognized, and a plan to replenish the ending resources over a 

reasonable time frame shall be adopted. 

   

 The General Fund available fund balance will be maintained at a level of at least 50 

days expenditures.   

 

 The combined ending resources of the Water/Wastewater shall be maintained at a level 

at least 80 days expenditures.  The annual budget shall target rating agency standards.    

 

 The ending resources of the Parks and Recreation Venue Fund will be maintained at a 

level at least 80 days of budgeted Parks and Recreation Venue Sales Tax revenue.  EPIC 

Surplus Operating Reserve Fund - $1,000,000 will be maintained during the term of 

151

Item 16.



 

 

15 

 

the outstanding debt schedule for EPIC.  This amount is funded by surplus sales tax 

collections. 

 

 The Pooled Investment Fund resources balance should be maintained at a level equal 

to .50% times the value of the investment portfolio.    

 

 All other enterprise funds, including the Risk Management Fund and Employee 

Insurance Fund, should be maintained at a level equivalent to a minimum of 45 days 

expenditures.  

 

Order of Expenditure of Funds – When multiple categories of fund balance are available for 

expenditure, the City will start with the most restricted category and spend those funds first before 

moving down to the next category with available funds.  

 

D.  RISK MANAGEMENT RESERVES - The City will aggressively pursue every opportunity to 

provide for the public’s and City employees’ safety and to manage its risks.  

  

Property, Liability, Workers Comp Reserves – Cash Reserves of no less than 85% of the actuarially 

determined incurred but not reported (IBNR) costs shall be maintained in the Risk Management 

Fund.  

 

Employee Insurance Reserves – Cash Reserves of no less than 100% of actuarially determined 

incurred but not reported (IBNR) costs shall be maintained in the Employee Insurance Fund. 

 

Employee Insurance Stop Loss Reserves – The City will self-fund its employee health insurance 

stop loss.  A cash reserve will be established to fund the stop loss reserve.  The City's goal will be 

a $2,000,000 stop loss reserve.  This goal will be reviewed on an annual basis during the budget 

preparation process to evaluate the funding level adequacy. 

 

Contingency Reserves – The City will self-fund a reserve in the employee insurance fund, of at 

least $2,000,000 to help offset claim years that result in higher than expected losses in order to 

preserve stability in the fund.  This reserve is not actuarially required, but has been determined a 

sound process by actuaries reviewing the insurance fund due to volatility of claims that can occur.  

This reserve will be rebuilt, in whole or part, as funding is available, up to the minimum of 

$2,000,000, during each budget year. The City may fund more in this reserve as needed or desired 

for financial stability. 

 

E.  LOSS FINANCING - All reasonable options will be investigated to finance losses.  Such options 

may include risk transfer, insurance, and risk retention. Where risk is retained, reserves will be 

established based on a calculation of incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims and actuarial 

determinations.  Such reserves will not be used for any purpose other than for financing losses.    

 

F.  ENTERPRISE FUND SELF-SUFFICIENCY - The City’s enterprise funds’ resources will be 

sufficient to fund operating and capital expenditures.  The enterprise funds will pay (where 

applicable) their fair share of general and administrative expenses, in-lieu-of-property taxes and/or 

franchise fees.  If an enterprise fund is temporarily unable to pay all expenses, then the City 

Council may waive general and administrative expenses, in-lieu-of-property taxes and/or franchise 

152

Item 16.



 

 

16 

 

fees until the fund is able to pay them.  The City Council may pay out-of-pocket expenses that a 

fund is temporarily unable to pay with interfund loans, to be repaid at a future date.  

  

G. LANDFILL RESERVES – A series of cash reserves will be funded to help ensure stable customer 

rates and long-term financial security for the City’s landfill.  The amounts required will be 

reviewed no less frequently than every second year.  

 

Liner Reserve – An amount will be set aside from operations annually so that sufficient funds have 

accumulated to pay for the next liner when required.  The amount set aside will be based on the 

average annual amount actually paid for liners over the most recent three-year period, modified 

for known scope changes, if any, anticipated in the next liner project. 

  

Equipment Replacement – An amount will be set aside from operations annually approximately 

equal to the average annual depreciation cost of all landfill equipment, based on estimated 

replacement cost less salvage value.  

 

Closure/Post Closure – The reserve required according to Generally Acceptable Accounting 

Principles (GASB Statement No.18) will be accumulated over time through annual contributions 

from operations so that sufficient funds are on hand at the end of the life of the landfill to pay 

closure/post closure costs.  

 

Landfill Replacement – The City’s goal will be to fund the amount estimated to be required to 

provide a replacement solid waste disposal facility by the end of the life of the landfill through 

annual contributions from operations.   

 

Capital Projects/Emergency Reserve – An amount approximately equal to the average annual 

amount required for miscellaneous capital improvements at the landfill will be provided annually 

from operations.  Additionally, approximately one year’s average annual amount will be retained 

in the fund to provide for miscellaneous, moderate emergencies.  

 

H. CEMETERY CARE AND MAINTENANCE FUND – In accordance with Section 713.002 of 

the Health and Safety Code, the City shall contribute 15% of every sale of burial rights (including 

graves, lawn crypts, and mausoleum crypts and columbaria niches) within the cemetery to the 

Cemetery and Maintenance Care Fund.  The principal amount contributed to the fund will be non-

expendable.  Interest earned on the fund balance shall be used for the care and preservation of 

cemetery grounds.  

 

I. CEMETERY PREPAID SERVICE FEE ESCROW – The Parks and Recreation Department is 

authorized to collect prepaid burial service fees from patrons of the cemetery.  When collected, 

such fees will be deposited into the Cemetery Prepaid Service Fee Escrow account and a separate 

record of each patron’s deposit will be maintained by the Parks and Recreation Department.  Upon 

delivery of the burial service to the patron, the amount on deposit will be transferred into the 

Cemetery Fund as revenue.  Any interest earned on the Prepaid Service Fee Escrow account 

balance will be revenue to the Cemetery Fund.  In the event the burial service is not delivered, the 

Parks and Recreation Department may refund the original amount paid without interest.  

  

J.  WATER/WASTEWATER RATE STABILIZATION FUND –  

A Water/Wastewater Rate Stabilization Fund shall be established by ordinance as a fund and 

153

Item 16.



 

 

17 

 

maintained separately from other funds.  Its purpose will be to protect rate payers from excessive 

utility rate volatility.  It may not be used for any other purpose.  It will be funded with surplus 

revenues of the Water/Wastewater Fund and interest earnings.  The City’s goal will be to maintain 

the Fund’s assets at a minimum of 7.5% of budgeted operating expenditures.  

 

X.   DEBT MANAGEMENT  
 

A. GENERAL - The City’s borrowing practices will be conducted in accordance with Debt 

Management Policies approved by the City Manager and City Council.  

 

B. SELF-SUPPORTING DEBT – When appropriate, self-supporting revenues will pay debt 

service in lieu of property tax revenues.  

 

C. ANALYSIS OF FINANCING ALTERNATIVES - The City will explore all financing 

alternatives in addition to long-term debt including leasing, grants and other aid, developer 

contributions, impact fees, and use of reserves or current monies.  

 

D. VOTER AUTHORIZATION - The City shall obtain voter authorization before issuing General 

Obligation Bonds as required by law. Voter authorization is not required for the issuance of 

Revenue Bonds, Tax Notes or Certificates of Obligations.  However, the City may elect to obtain 

voter authorization for Revenue Bonds.  

 

XI.  STAFFING AND TRAINING  
  

A.  ADEQUATE STAFFING - Staffing levels will be adequate for the fiscal functions of the City to 

function effectively.  Overtime shall be used only to address temporary or seasonal demands that 

require excessive hours.  Workload shedding alternatives will be explored before adding staff.  

 

B. TRAINING - The City will support the continuing education efforts of all financial staff including 

the investment in time and materials for maintaining a current perspective concerning financial 

issues.  Staff will be held accountable for communicating, teaching, and sharing with other staff 

members all information and training materials acquired from seminars, conferences, and related 

education efforts.  

 

C. AWARDS, CREDENTIALS - The City will support efforts and involvements which result in 

meeting standards and receiving exemplary recitations on behalf of any of the City’s fiscal policies, 

practices, processes, products, or personnel.  Staff certifications may include Certified Public 

Accountant, Certified Management Accountant, Certified Internal Auditor, Certified Payroll 

Professional, Certified Government Finance Officer, Professional Public Buyer, Registered Tax 

Assessor/Collector, and Certified Cash Manager, and others as approved by the City Manager 

upon recommendation of the Chief Financial Officer.   

  

XII.  GRANTS  
 

A. APPLICABLE LAWS – The City shall adhere to federal and state laws and regulations related 

to grants.  

 

154

Item 16.



 

 

18 

 

(a) Federal grants are governed by and the City shall adhere to Federal Register Title 2, Subtitle 

A, Chapter II, Part 200 - Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 

Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Grant Guidance). 

 

(b) State grants are governed by and the City shall adhere to Local Government Code Title 7, 

Chapter 783 - Uniform Grants Management Standards issued by the Governor’s Office of 

Budget and Planning for the State of Texas. 

 

  

B. AUTHORITY – The City Council determines the goals and priorities of the City.  All grant-

funded activities/programs are assessed and approved by the City Council to ensure that (1) the 

activity/program is consistent with these goals and priorities; (2) grant financial assistance is 

needed; and (3) grant proposals and budgets accurately reflect these goals and needs.   

 

While the City Council approves all grant activities/programs, the Council may delegate authority 

to the City Manager to accept grant awards and execute all grant-related documents. 

 

C. INDIRECT COSTS – When allowable, indirect costs may be included when formulating budgets 

prior to application submission.  The rates are determined by the Budget Department and approved 

by the City’s cognizant agency and are effective for the period October 1 – September 30 of each 

grant year. 

 

D. SOLICITATION – It is the responsibility of City Departments to locate grant sources, determine 

the appropriateness of the grant, prepare council communications regarding applications and/or 

grant offers, and draft grant applications for submission for grants which would be cost beneficial 

and meet the City’s objectives. 

 

E. SUPPLEMENT NOT SUPPLANT – FEDERAL GRANTS – The City has implemented 

guidelines to ensure compliance with federal fiscal requirement of supplement, not supplant.  The 

purpose of the procedures is to ensure that the level of state and local support for programs remains 

at least constant and is not replaced by federal funds.  Federal funds are used to supplement (add 

to, enhance, to expand, create something new, increase) the funds available from non-federal 

sources, and not to supplant (replace or take the place of) the existing non-federal funds. 

 

(a) Federal funds may be used only to provide supplemental or augment the programs generally 

offered with state and local funds. 

 

(b) Federal funds may be used only to provide supplemental services that would not have been 

provided had the federal funds not been available. 

 

(c) State and local funds which previously funded activities may not be diverted to another purpose 

simply because federal funds are now available to fund those activities.  In other words, the 

use of federal funds may not result in a decrease in state and local funds for a particular activity, 

which, the absence of the federal funds, would have been available to conduct the activity. 

 

(d) Federal funds must supplement or augment that which must be provided by state law, or any 

activities which have been adopted as policy by the City to fund from non-federal sources.   

 

155

Item 16.



 

 

19 

 

(e) If federal funds are used to enhance or expand a state mandate or city policy, the federal 

supplementary activities must be separately identified and clearly distinguishable from the 

activities identified as necessary for implementing a state mandate or city policy as outlined in 

the implementation plan. 

 

F. PROCUREMENT – In addition to City procurement policies and guidelines as outlined in the 

City’s Purchasing Policy, all applicable procurement requirements of federal and state grant fund 

regulations, other applicable laws and regulations, and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 

circulars apply to the use of grant funds.   

 

G. COMPLIANCE – The City shall comply with specific terms and conditions as set forth in Federal 

and State Grant Award Notifications (GAN).  GANs may also include general terms and 

conditions.  Should there be any inconsistency between the (1) specific terms and conditions, and 

(2) general terms and conditions, specific terms and conditions will govern.   

 

If general or specific terms and conditions conflict with City policies and procedures, the most 

conservative rule will govern.  

 

H. MANAGEMENT – Grant management lies within each Department of the City under the 

direction of Department Directors.  Department Directors are accountable to the City Manager, the 

City Council, and to the granting agencies for the financial and regulatory administration of 

Federal, State and local financial assistance awarded to the City. 

 

Grant management shall be in accordance with the City’s Grant Management Guidelines and 

Procedures Manual.  Applications will be sent to Finance prior to submission in order to establish 

appropriate accounting and reporting, as well as to ensure appropriate banking information is 

provided to the grantor. 

 

I. SECTION 8 OPERATING RESERVES - Section 8 reserves shall only be used for housing 

related expenditures in compliance with Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 

regulations.  

 

b. A minimum threshold reserve of $250,000 shall be maintained for Section 8 purposes to 

provide funding for future administrative and housing assistance payments in case funding 

from HUD is not sufficient.  Such an insufficiency might become the responsibility of the 

City should unforeseen market or economic conditions, changes in HUD policy, or human 

error result in a Section 8 deficit.  

c. In addition to the minimum reserve, a contingency account of up to $50,000 may be 

established annually which may, with the approval of the City Manager or, if appropriate, 

the City Council, be used for unforeseen, unbudgeted housing-related items. 

d. Amounts in excess of the $250,000 minimum reserve and contingency account may be 

used for housing-related projects implemented by the Housing and Neighborhood Services 

Department (HNS) and approved by the City Council. 

e. Funds may be temporarily loaned from the $250,000 minimum threshold reserve to finance 

housing-related projects if, in the judgment of the HNS Director and the City Council, the 

funds will not be required in the near future to cover a Section 8 deficit.  At the time such 

156

Item 16.



 

 

20 

 

a loan is approved, a repayment plan must also be approved. 

 

J. CDBG PROGRAMS - City Council approval shall be required to add any new activity after 

adoption of the final budget.  If the project cost of the new activity will be greater than 10% of the 

total budget, the addition shall be submitted to HUD for approval.  

  

 

XIII.    ANNUAL REVIEW & REPORTING   
 

A. These financial management policies will be reviewed administratively by the City Manager at 

least annually, prior to preparation of the operating budget and will be presented to the City 

Council for confirmation of any significant changes. 

  

B. The Chief Financial Officer will report annually to the Finance and Government Committee on                

 compliance with these policies. 

157

Item 16.



 

 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES 

February 2nd, 2021 

Prepared by the Finance Department 
 

  

  

158

Item 16.



 

 

2 

 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES 

 

 

Table of Contents 
I. PURPOSE STATEMENT ........................................................................................................ 3 

II. ACCOUNTING, AUDITING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING ........................................ 3 

III. INTERNAL CONTROLS ........................................................................................................ 4 

IV. OPERATING BUDGET .......................................................................................................... 5 

V. CAPITAL BUDGET AND PROGRAM ................................................................................. 5 

VI. REVENUE MANAGEMENT .................................................................................................. 7 

VII. EXPENDITURE CONTROL .................................................................................................. 9 

VIII. ASSET MANAGEMENT ....................................................................................................... 13 

IX. FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESERVES ................................................................... 13 

X. DEBT MANAGEMENT ........................................................................................................ 17 

XI. STAFFING AND TRAINING ............................................................................................... 17 

XII. GRANTS .................................................................................................................................. 17 

XIII. ANNUAL REVIEW & REPORTING .................................................................................. 20 

 

 

 

  

  

159

Item 16.



 

 

3 

 

I.   PURPOSE STATEMENT  
  

These policies are developed by the City Manager to guide the Chief Financial Officer, Audit Services 

Director, Budget Director, and other department staff in all financial matters.  The overriding goal of the 

Financial Management Policies is to enable the City to achieve a long-term stable and positive financial 

condition while conducting its operations consistent with the Council—Manager form of government 

established in the City Charter.  The watchwords of the City’s financial management include integrity, 

prudent stewardship, planning, accountability, and full disclosure.  

The purpose of the Financial Management Policies is to provide guidelines for the financial management 

staff in planning and directing the City’s day-to-day financial affairs and in developing recommendations 

to the City Manager.  The scope of the policies spans accounting, auditing, financial reporting, internal 

controls, operating and capital budgeting, revenue management, cash management, expenditure control, 

and debt management. 

 

II.   ACCOUNTING, AUDITING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING  
  

A. ACCOUNTING - The City Controller is responsible for establishing the chart of accounts, and 

for properly recording financial transactions. 

 

B.  FUNDS - Self-balancing groups of accounts are used to account for City financial transactions in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  Each fund is created for a specific 

purpose except for the General Fund which is used to account for all transactions not accounted 

for in other funds.  Funds are created and fund names are changed by City Council approval either 

through resolution during the year or in the City Council’s approval of the annual operating or 

capital budget ordinances. 

 

C. EXTERNAL AUDITING - The City will be audited annually by outside independent auditors.  

The auditors must be a CPA firm of national reputation and must demonstrate that they have the 

breadth and depth of staff to conduct the City’s audit in accordance with generally accepted 

auditing standards, generally accepted government auditing standards, and contractual 

requirements.  The auditors’ report on the City’s financial statements including federal grants 

(single audit) will be completed within 180 days of the City’s fiscal year end, and the auditors’ 

management letter will be presented to the City staff within 180 days after the City’s fiscal year 

end.  Staff will attempt to complete the reports prior to this, with a reach goal of 120 days. An 

interim management letter will be issued prior to this date if any materially significant internal 

control weaknesses are discovered.  The City staff and auditors will jointly review the management 

letter with the City Council Finance and Government Committee and City Council within sixty 

(60) days of its receipt by the staff. 

 

D.  EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY TO CITY COUNCIL - The external auditors 

are accountable to the City Council and will have access to direct communication with the City 

Council if the City staff is unresponsive to auditor recommendations or if the auditors consider 

such communication necessary to fulfill their legal and professional responsibilities.  

  

160

Item 16.



 

 

4 

 

The City Council Finance and Government Committee will conduct at least one closed session 

annually with the auditors present without the presence of City staff.  Such meeting shall be 

conducted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act. 

  

E.  EXTERNAL AUDITOR ROTATION - The City will not require external auditor rotation but 

will circulate requests for proposal for audit services periodically, normally at five-year intervals. 

The City will also consider periodic partner in charge rotations if continuing with existing 

auditors past five years. 

  

F.  INTERNAL AUDITING - The City Manager established an internal audit function February 1, 

1989.  The Audit Services Director reports to the City Manager’s office.  The annual work plan 

for internal audit includes compliance test work and performance auditing along with designated 

special projects.  The internal audit work plan is approved annually by the City Manager’s office 

and by the Finance and Government Committee. 

 

G.  EXTERNAL FINANCIAL REPORTING - The City will prepare and publish a 

comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR).  The CAFR will be prepared in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles and will be presented annually to the Government 

Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for evaluation and awarding of the Certification of 

Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.  The CAFR will be published and presented 

to the City Council within 180 days after the end of the fiscal year.  City staffing limitations may 

preclude such timely reporting.  In such case, the Chief Financial Officer will inform the City 

Manager and the City Manager will inform the City Council of the delay and the reasons 

therefore.  

 

H. INTERNAL FINANCIAL REPORTING - The Finance and Budget departments will provide 

internal financial information, via online access or reports, sufficient for management to plan, 

monitor, and control the City’s financial affairs.  Internal financial reporting objectives are 

addressed throughout these policies.  

  

III.  INTERNAL CONTROLS  
 

A. WRITTEN PROCEDURES - The Chief Financial Officer and Audit Services Director are 

responsible for developing City-wide written guidelines on accounting, cash handling, and other 

financial matters which will be approved by the City Manager and Finance and Governance (F&G) 

Committee. Annually, the City Manager and F&G committee will approve the Internal Audit work 

plan. Projects on the work plan will be reviewed quarterly by the F&G committee. 

 

 The Finance Department will assist department managers as needed in tailoring these guidelines 

into detailed written procedures to fit each department’s requirements.  

 

B.  INTERNAL AUDIT – Audit Services will conduct reviews of the departments to determine if 

the departments are following the written guidelines as they apply to the departments.  They will 

also review the written guidelines on accounting, cash handling, and other financial matters.  Based 

on these reviews, Audit Services will recommend internal control improvements as needed.  

 

161

Item 16.



 

 

5 

 

C. DEPARTMENT MANAGERS’ RESPONSIBILITY - Department Managers’ responsibilities 

to the City Manager are to ensure that good internal controls are followed throughout his or her 

department, that all guidelines on accounting and internal controls are implemented, and that all 

independent and internal auditor internal control recommendations are addressed. 

 

IV.  OPERATING BUDGET  
 

A. PREPARATION - The City’s “operating budget” is the City’s annual financial operating plan. 
The operating budget’s basis of accounting will be cash or modified accrual and reconciled to the 

annual audit  The budget is prepared by the Budget Office with the cooperation of all City 

Departments and is submitted to the City Manager who makes any necessary changes and 

transmits the document to the City Council. The budget should be presented to the City Council 

no later than six (6) weeks prior to fiscal year end and should be enacted by the City Council prior 

to fiscal year end. 

  

B. BALANCED BUDGETS - The operating budgets will be balanced with current revenues, 

exclusive of beginning resources, greater than or equal to current expenditures/expenses. Funds 

deemed at risk will be updated either monthly or quarterly to the Finance and Government 

Committee.  

  

C. PLANNING - The budget process will be coordinated so as to identify major policy issues for City 

Council consideration several months prior to the budget approval date.  The Budget Office will 

work closely with the Finance and Government Committee in order to review all budgeted funds 

prior to submitting a proposed budget to the entire City Council.  

  

D. REPORTING – Monthly financial reports will be prepared and made available to Department 

Managers for use in managing their budgets and to enable the Budget Director to monitor and 

control the budget as authorized by the City Manager. 

 

E.  CONTROL - Operating expenditure controls are addressed throughout these policies.  

 

V.   CAPITAL BUDGET AND PROGRAM  
 

A.  PREPARATION - The City’s capital budget will include all capital project funds and all capital 

resources, excluding TIFs, PIDs, grants, and other unique projects.  This budget will be prepared 

annually on a fiscal year basis and adopted by ordinance.  The capital budget will be prepared by 

the Budget Office with the involvement of all required City departments. 

  

B.  CONTROL - All capital project expenditures must be appropriated in the capital budget, 

excluding TIFs, PIDs, grants, and other unique projects.  The Budget Office must certify the 

availability of resources so an appropriation can be made before a capital project contract is 

presented by the City Manager to the City Council for approval.  

 

C.  PROGRAM PLANNING - The capital budget will include plans for a capital improvements 

program for future years.  The planning time frame should be at least five years.  The replacement 

and maintenance for capital items should also be projected for the next 5 years.  Future 

162

Item 16.



 

 

6 

 

maintenance and operations will be fully costed, so that these costs can be considered in the 

operating budget.  

 

D. ALTERNATE RESOURCES - Where applicable, assessments, impact fees, and/or other user-

based fees should be used to fund capital projects which have a primary benefit to certain property 

owners. 

  

E. DEBT FINANCING - Recognizing that debt is usually a more expensive financing method, 

alternative financing sources will be explored before debt is issued.  When debt is issued, it will 

be used to acquire and/or construct major capital assets with expected lives equal to or exceeding 

the average life of the debt issue.  The exceptions to this requirement are the traditional costs of 

marketing and issuing the debt, capitalized labor for the design and construction of capital projects, 

and small component parts which are attached to major equipment purchases.  The City’s debt 

policy will guide the use and extent of debt financing. 

  

F.  CAPITAL AND LENDING RESERVE FUND 

  The City established a Capital and Lending Reserve Fund in December, 2009 which is monitored 

by the Budget department and accounted for by the Finance Department separately from all other 

funds.  There are no set funding sources; however, contributions may be added to this fund by 

recommendation of the City Manager’s Office (CMO) and the Finance and Government 

Committee and must be approved by the City Council.   

 

     Expenditures and disbursements from the Capital Lending and Reserve Fund must be authorized 

and approved by City Council action following recommendations by the City Manager’s Office 

and the Finance and Government Committee.  A plan to replenish the fund over a reasonable time 

frame will be included in this authorization.  There may be one-time uses that will not be repaid. 

 

G.  STREET MAINTENANCE - The City recognizes that deferred street maintenance increases 

future capital costs by an estimated 5 to 10 times.  In 2017, the city voted ¼ cent of its sales tax 

and dedicated those revenues to street maintenance. Additionally, the city devotes PILOT and 

franchise fee revenue to street maintenance.  A street maintenance paving assessment is done 

annually.  The city reserves 10% of sales tax revenues for this purpose. 

 

H.  WATER/WASTEWATER MAIN REHABILITATION AND REPLACEMENT - The City 

recognizes that deferred water/wastewater main rehabilitation and replacement increases future 

costs due to loss of potable water from water mains and inflow and infiltration into wastewater 

mains.  Therefore, to ensure that the rehabilitation and replacement program is adequately funded, 

the City’s will annually appropriate cash as available.   

 

I.  GENERAL GOVERNMENT CAPITAL RESERVE - A reserve will be maintained for general 

governmental capital projects. The reserve will be funded with General Fund operating surpluses.  

The reserve will be used for, for major capital outlay, and for unplanned projects.  As soon as 

practicable after each fiscal year end when annual operating results are known, any General Fund 

operating surplus in excess of budget which is not required to meet ending resources requirements 

may be transferred to the reserve with the approval of the City Council.   

 

163

Item 16.



 

 

7 

 

J.  REPORTING - Monthly financial information will be available to enable Department Managers 

to manage their capital budgets and to enable the Budget Office to monitor the capital budget as 

authorized by the City Manager.  

 

VI.  REVENUE MANAGEMENT  
 

A.  SIMPLICITY - The City will strive to keep the revenue system simple which will result in a 

 decrease of compliance costs for the taxpayer or service recipient and a corresponding decrease 

 in avoidance to pay.   

 

B.  CERTAINTY - An understanding of the revenue source increases the reliability of the revenue 

system.  The City will try to understand its revenue sources and enact consistent collection policies 

so that assurances can be provided that the revenue base will materialize according to budgets and 

plans. 

  

C.  EQUITY - The City will strive to maintain equity in the revenue system structure.  That is, the 

City will seek to minimize or eliminate all forms for subsidization between entities, funds, services, 

utilities, and customers.  However, it is recognized that public policy decisions may lead to 

subsidies in certain circumstances, e.g., senior citizen property tax exemptions or partial property 

tax abatement.  

 

D.  ADMINISTRATION - The benefits of revenue will exceed the cost of producing the revenue.  

The cost of collection will be reviewed for cost effectiveness as a part of the indirect cost and cost 

of services analysis.  Where appropriate, the City will use the administrative processes of State or 

Federal collection agencies in order to reduce administrative costs.  

 

E.  REVENUE ADEQUACY - The City will require that there be a balance in the revenue system.  

That is, the revenue base will have the characteristic of fairness and neutrality as it applies to cost 

of service, willingness to pay, and ability to pay.  

 

F. COST/BENEFIT OF ABATEMENT AND REINVESTMENT ZONES - The City will use due 

caution in the analysis of any tax, fee, or water and wastewater incentives that are used to 

encourage development.  Ideally, a cost/benefit (fiscal impact) analysis will be performed as a part 

of such analysis. Annually, the City will also assess the current boundaries, revenues, and 

participation levels of the tax increment reinvestment zones and determine their ongoing viability. 

The City will include administrative costs in the use of TIRZ revenues.   The City will follow an 

overall economic development program as authorized by the City Manager. 

 

  

G. DIVERSIFICATION AND STABILITY - In order to protect the government from fluctuations 

in a revenue source due to fluctuations in the economy, and variations in weather, (in the case of 

water and wastewater), a diversified revenue system will be maintained across the organization.  

 

H. NON-RECURRING REVENUES - One-time revenues will not be used for ongoing operations.  

Non-recurring revenues will be used only for non-recurring expenditures.  Care will be taken not 

to use these revenues for budget balancing purposes.  

  

164

Item 16.



 

 

8 

 

I.  PROPERTY TAX REVENUES - Property shall be assessed at 100% of the taxable value as 

appraised by the Dallas Central, Ellis, and Tarrant Appraisal Districts.  Reappraisals and 

reassessments shall be completed as required by State law.  A 99.5% collection rate will serve as 

a target budget for tax collections with a delinquency rate of 1% or less barring extraordinary 

circumstances. The 99.5% rate is calculated by dividing total current year tax collections for a 

fiscal year by the total tax levy for the fiscal year. All delinquent taxes will be aggressively 

pursued.  Delinquencies greater than 150 days will be turned over to the City Attorney or a private 

attorney, and a penalty assessed to compensate the attorney as allowed by state law and in 

accordance with the attorney’s contract.  Annual performance criteria will be developed for the 

attorney. 

 

J.  PARKS AND RECREATION VENUE SALES TAX REVENUE – Parks and Recreation 

Venue sales tax revenue shall supplement, but not supplant, the funding for the Parks and 

Recreation System which was in place prior to 2000.  No more than 49.99% of Parks and 

Recreation Venue sales tax revenue may be used for operations.  At least 50.01% of the revenue 

will be dedicated to capital expenditures and debt service for Parks and Recreation System 

improvements and for associated reserves.  

 

K. EMPLOYEE INSURANCE FUND – Since a portion of the revenue in the Employee Insurance 

Fund is deducted from employee paychecks for the specific purpose of providing health and life 

insurance coverage, no funds shall ever be transferred out of this fund to be used for any other 

purpose.  Any additional contingency will be budgeted in the Risk Fund for added flexibility. The 

Finance and Government Committee will review the status of the fund no less than quarterly. 

 

L.  USER-BASED FEES - For services associated with a user fee or charge, the direct and indirect 

costs of that service will be offset by a fee where possible.  There will be a review of fees and 

charges to ensure that fees provide adequate coverage of costs of services.  User charges may be 

classified as “full cost recovery”, “partial cost recovery”, and “minimal cost recovery”, based upon 

City Council policy.  

 

M. IMPACT FEES - Impact fees will be imposed for water and wastewater, in accordance with the 

requirements of state law.  The staff working with the Impact Fee Advisory Committee (Planning 

and Zoning Commission) shall prepare a semi-annual report on the capital improvement plans and 

fees.  Additionally, the impact fees will be re-evaluated at least every five years as required by 

law.  

 

N.  IN-LIEU-OF PROPERTY TAX - The in-lieu-of-property-tax paid by the Water/Wastewater and 

Solid Waste funds will be dedicated solely to street maintenance and improvements.  

 

O.  GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES - A method will be maintained whereby the 

General Fund can impose a charge to the enterprise funds for general and administrative services 

(indirect costs) performed on the enterprise funds’ behalf.  The details will be documented in the 

annual indirect cost study or staff analysis. This process may also apply to TIRZ/TIF funds and 

other support to special districts, as directed by the City Manager. 

 

P.  UTILITY RATES - The City will review utility rates annually, and if necessary, adopt new rates 

that will generate revenues required to fully cover operating expenditures, meet the legal 

restrictions of all applicable bond covenants, and provide for an adequate level of working capital 

165

Item 16.



 

 

9 

 

needs.  This policy does not preclude drawing down cash balance to finance current operations.  

However, it is best that any extra cash balance be used instead to finance capital projects.  

   

Q.  INTEREST INCOME - Interest earned from investment of available monies will accumulate in 

a Pooled Investment Fund to use for special projects as approved by the City Manager and City 

Council.  In specific instances or where required by law (such as forfeiture funds), interest may be 

assigned to a particular fund or account. The activity in the pooled investment fund will be reported 

in accordance with city investment policies as reviewed and adopted annually by City Council.    

 

R. REVENUE MONITORING - Revenues actually received will be regularly compared to budgeted 

revenues, and variances will be investigated.  This process will be summarized in the appropriate 

budget report.  

 

S.  SALES TAX REVENUE – The State Comptrollers’ Office collects, administers, and disburses 

this revenue each month.  The Budget Office monitors and reports this activity reflecting any 

Economic Development Agreements, state audit adjustments, and refunds made to the gross 

collections.  These adjustments are prorated back to other sales taxing entities (Crime Control & 

Prevention District, Park Venue, Streets, and Epic) that currently exist and have not been 

dissolved.  The General fund may absorb any adjustment variances among the sales tax entities 

that may result due to dissolutions.   

  

 

VII.  EXPENDITURE CONTROL  
  

A. APPROPRIATIONS – Appropriations are budgeted at the fund level.  If budget amendments 

(increase in appropriations) are necessary, they must be approved by the City Council.  Budget 

adjustments (transfers between line items within the same fund) are allowed as long as the 

adjustments do not exceed the total budgeted appropriations for that fund.   

 

B. VACANCY SAVINGS AND CONTINGENCY ACCOUNT - The General Fund Contingency 

Account will be budgeted at a minimal amount ($50,000).  The contingency account balance for 

expenditures will be increased monthly by the amount of available salary vacancy savings.   

 

C. CONTINGENCY ACCOUNT EXPENDITURES - The City Council must approve all 

contingency account expenditures of $50,000 or more, as discussed under Purchasing.  While no 

approval is required, the City Council will be informed of General Fund contingency account 

expenditures of $5,000 or more by memorandum in the monthly reports.  The Budget Office is 

responsible for submitting this memorandum to the City Manager based on information submitted 

by the spending department.  

 

D. CENTRAL CONTROL - Significant vacancy (salary) and capital budgetary savings in any 

department will be centrally controlled; and, may not be spent by the department without City 

Manager authorization.  

 

E. PURCHASING – All purchases shall be in accordance with the City’s purchasing policies as 

defined in the Purchasing Policy. City procurements are governed by state and federal law, as well 

as the city Code of Ordinances. The primary Texas Statutes that pertain to Purchasing are: 

166

Item 16.



 

 

10 

 

 TEX. LOC. GOV’T CODE: 

o § 176 Disclosure of Certain Relationships with Local Government Officers; Providing 

Public Access to Certain Information 

o § 252  Purchasing and Contracting Authority of Municipalities 

o § 271  Purchasing and Contracting Authority of Municipalities, Counties, and Certain 

Other Local Governments 

o § 302  Energy Saving Performance Contracts for Local Governments 

 TEX. GOV’T CODE: 

o §   791  Interlocal Cooperation Contracts 

o § 2155  Purchasing: General Rules and Procedures 

o § 2156  Purchasing Methods 

o § 2158  Purchasing: Miscellaneous Provisions for Purchase of Certain Goods & Services 

o § 2161  Historically Underutilized Businesses 

o § 2252  Contracts with Governmental Entity 

o § 2253  Public Work Performance and Payment Bonds 

o § 2254  Professional and Consulting Services 

o § 2258  Prevailing Wage Rates 

o § 2267  Public and Private Facilities and Infrastructure 

o § 2269  Contracting and Delivery Procedures for Construction Projects 

 

Strong ethical standards are required at all levels of the purchasing function. Purchasing personnel 

and City departmental staff face the challenging task of developing good vendor relations and 

encouraging vendor competition while avoiding even the appearance of favoritism or other ethical 

misconduct. 

 

Criminal penalties are associated with attempts to avoid compliance with the state procurement 

laws, as detailed below. 

 

Local Government Code Section 252 

Sec. 252.062.  CRIMINAL PENALTIES 

 

(a) A municipal officer or employee commits an offense if the officer or employee intentionally 

or knowingly makes or authorizes separate, sequential or component purchases to avoid the 

competitive bidding requirements of Section 252.021.  An offense under this subsection is a 

Class B misdemeanor. 

 

(b) A municipal officer or employee commits an offense if the officer or employee intentionally 

or knowingly violates Section 252.021, other than by conduct described by Subsection (a).  An 

offense under this subsection is a Class B misdemeanor. 

CLASS B MISDEMEANOR.  An individual adjudged guilty of a Class B misdemeanor 

shall be punished by: 

 

(1)  a fine not to exceed $2,000; 

(2)  confinement in jail for a term not to exceed 180 days;  or 

(3)  both such fine and confinement 

 

167

Item 16.



 

 

11 

 

(c) A municipal officer or employee commits an offense if the officer or employee intentionally 

or knowingly violates this chapter, other than by conduct described by Subsection (a) or (b).  

An offense under this subsection is a Class C misdemeanor. 

 

CLASS C MISDEMEANOR.  An individual adjudged guilty of a Class C misdemeanor 

shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $500. 

 

Sec. 252.063.  REMOVAL; INELIGIBILITY. 

 

(a) The final conviction of a municipal officer or employee for an offense under Section 

252.062(a) or (b) results in the immediate removal from office or employment of that person. 

 

(b) For four years after the date of the final conviction, the removed officer or employee is 

ineligible:   

(1) To be a candidate for or to be appointed or elected to a public office in this state; 

(2) To be employed by the municipality with which the person served when the offense 

occurred; and 

(3) To receive any compensation through a contract with that municipality. 

 

(c) This section does not prohibit the payment of retirement or workers’ compensation benefits to 

the removed officer or employee. 

 

Several purchasing practices may appear as attempts to avoid compliance with procurement 

laws.  They are making component, separate or sequential purchases and are explained below. 

 

“Component purchases” usually is an attempt to circumvent bid or proposal laws or other 

requirements by buying items or services through the issuance of multiple purchase orders for the 

component parts or services of the item versus issuing a single purchase order for the entire item 

or service.  Repeated purchases of additional optional equipment or parts after an initial purchase 

may create the perception of component purchasing.  An example of “Component purchasing” for 

an item would be to place an order for a mower under one Purchase Order and then place an order 

for an attachment for the mower under a different Purchase Order.  An example of “Component 

purchases” for a service would be to place an order to have the grass mowed and place another 

order to have the weeds pulled, and another separate order to have the area edged.   

 

“Separate purchases” are very similar to “component purchases” but are usually less likely to be 

a direct attempt to circumvent bid or proposal laws or other statutory/policy requirements.  Items 

or services that are purchased under separate orders that should be ordered under a single purchase 

order or contract could be considered “separate purchases”.  An example of “separate purchases” 

would be to place an order with one vendor to perform construction framing services; place a 

separate order with another vendor to install sheet rock; place a separate order with another vendor 

to paint; and etc. Another example of “separate purchases” would be to place an order with a 

vendor to document management system for department “A” and then place a separate order for 

document management system for another department. 

168

Item 16.



 

 

12 

 

“Sequential purchases” of like items or services over the course of a consecutive 365 day period 

may exceed the state competitive procurement requirements.  In some cases sequential purchasing 

is unintentional.  It may result from needs that could not be anticipated.  It may also result from 

lack of centralization of the purchasing function as one department may not know that another 

department is purchasing the same goods or services.   However, some sequential purchasing is 

intentional, and must be avoided at all costs.  A good example of “Sequential purchasing” would 

be office supplies.  Many departments do not individually purchase office supplies in values that 

exceed the limits of competitive procurement requirements.  However, the value of office supplies 

purchased by all City departments far exceeds the limits at which competitive bidding is required.  

This is one reason that the Purchasing Division solicits bids and awards annual price agreement 

contracts for items and services.  Operating departments are encouraged to bring to the 

attention of Purchasing any items or services that are not on a price agreement contract and 

for which the anticipated usage will be near or exceed the $50,000 threshold. 
  

F. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - Professional Services Contracts consist of the following 

services: Certified Public Accountant, Architect, Physician, Optometrist, Surgeon, Surveyor, 

Professional Engineer, Interior Designer, Insurance, Real Estate Appraisers,  Professional services 

will generally be processed through a request for qualifications or proposals process, except for 

smaller contracts.  The City Manager may execute any professional services contract except for 

insurance less than $50,000 provided there is an appropriation for such contract.  While City 

Council approval of other contracts less than $50,000 is not required, the Budget Office will inform 

the City Manager and the City Council whenever a professional services contract of $5,000 or 

more is approved.   

 

G.  PROMPT PAYMENT - All invoices will be paid within 30 days of receipt in accordance with 

the prompt payment requirements of State law.  Procedures will be used to take advantage of all 

purchase discounts where considered cost effective.  However, payments will also be reasonably 

delayed in order to maximize the City’s investable cash, where such delay does not violate the 

agreed upon payment terms.  

 

H.  EQUIPMENT FINANCING - Equipment may be financed when the unit purchase price is 

 $10,000 or more and the useful life is at least two years.  General Fund equipment financing and 

equipment for the Parks and Recreation programs that were funded in the General Fund prior to 

fiscal year 2000 will be accounted for in the Equipment Acquisition Fund, along with related 

professional services costs including long range plans and studies.  

 

I.   INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY –  
Certain information technology acquisitions will be centrally funded from the Information 

Technology (I/T) Capital Project Fund.  Acquisitions from this fund may include all related 

professional services costs for researching and/or implementing an information technology 

project.  Lease cost is also an eligible expense; lease agreements much be pre-approved by Finance 

Department. 

  

Items to be paid for in other funds include: The cost of repair and maintenance, supplies and 

replacement parts; acquisition of radios, telephones, computer equipment and  mobile devices; on-

going personnel costs; and, items acquired for a new position which will be budgeted with the 

position.  

169

Item 16.



 

 

13 

 

 

Annual funding of between $250,000 and $500,000 for replacements and between $250,000 and 

$500,000 for new technology will be provided through transfers from the General Fund and Water 

Wastewater Fund based on the relative amount of their budgeted ending resources.    

 

Additional funding above the base amount may be provided for major projects with available one-

time sources including debt proceeds.  

  

VIII.   ASSET MANAGEMENT  
  

A. INVESTMENTS - The City’s investment practices will be conducted in accordance with the City 

Council approved Investment Policies. 

  

B.  CASH MANAGEMENT - The City’s cash flow will be managed to ensure all expenses can be 

paid with cash on hand. 

 

C. INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE - A quarterly report on investment performance will be 

provided by the Chief Financial Officer to the City Manager for submission to the City Council.  

 

D. FIXED ASSETS AND INVENTORY - These assets will be reasonably safeguarded and properly 

accounted for, and prudently insured.  

 

IX.  FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESERVES  
  

A. NO OPERATING DEFICITS - Current expenditures will be paid with current revenues.  

Deferrals, short-term loans, or one-time sources will be avoided as budget balancing techniques.  

Reserves will be used only for emergencies or non-recurring expenditures, except when balances 

can be reduced because their levels exceed guideline minimums. 

 

B. INTERFUND LOANS - Non-routine interfund loans shall be made only in emergencies when 

other temporary sources of working capital are not available and with the approval of the City 

Council.  At the time an interfund loan is considered, a repayment plan prior to fiscal year end 

shall also be considered.  A fund will only lend money that it will not need to spend for the next 

365 days.  A loan may be made from a fund only if the fund has ending resources in excess of the 

minimum requirement for the fund.  Loans will not be made from the City’s enterprise funds 

(Water/Wastewater, Solid Waste, etc.) except for projects related to the purpose of the fund.  Total 

interfund loans outstanding from a fund shall not exceed 15% of the target fund balance for the 

fund.  If any interfund loan is to be repaid from the proceeds of a future debt issue, a proper 

reimbursement resolution will be approved at the time the loan is authorized.  

 

C. OPERATING RESERVES – A key element of the financial stability of the City is to establish 

guidelines for fund balance.  Unassigned fund balance is an important measure of economic 

stability.  It is essential that the City maintain adequate levels of unassigned fund balance to 

mitigate financial risk that can occur from unforeseen revenue fluctuations, unanticipated 

expenditures and similar circumstances.  Fund balance also provides cash flow liquidity for the 

City’s general questions.   

 

170

Item 16.



 

 

14 

 

Definitions: 

Fund Equity is generally the difference between its assets and liabilities.  Fund Balance is an 

accounting distinction made between the portions of fund equity that are spendable and non-

spendable.  These are broken up into five categories: 

 

(1) Non-spendable includes amounts that are not in a spendable form or required to be maintained 

intact (i.e., Inventory, prepaid assets, permanent funds, etc.). 

 

(2) Restricted includes amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes either constitutionally 

or through enabling legislation (e.g., grants and child safety fees). 

 

(3) Committed includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a 

formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority.  Commitments 

may be changed or lifted only by the government taking the same formal action that imposed 

the constraint originally. 

 

The City Council is the highest level of decision-making authority and the formal action that 

is required to be taken to establish, modify, or rescind a fund balance commitment is a 

resolution approved by the Council.  The resolution must either be approved or rescinded, as 

applicable, prior to the last day of the fiscal year for which the commitment is made.  The 

amount subject to the constraint may be determined in the subsequent period.   

 

(4) Assigned comprises amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposes.  

Intent can be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing 

body delegates the authority.  In governmental funds (other than the General Fund), assigned 

fund balance represents the amount that is not restricted or committed.  This indicates that 

resources in these funds are, at a minimum, intended to be used for the purpose of that fund. 

 

The City Council has authorized the City Manager as the official authorized to assign fund 

balance to a specific purpose as approved by the fund balance policy.   

   

(5) Unassigned is the residual classification of the general fund and includes all amounts not 

contained in other classifications.  Unassigned amounts are technically available for any 

purpose.   

 

Failure to meet the minimum unassigned fund balance will be disclosed to the City Council 

as soon as the situation is recognized, and a plan to replenish the ending resources over a 

reasonable time frame shall be adopted. 

   

 The General Fund available fund balance will be maintained at a level of at least 50 

days expenditures.   

 

 The combined ending resources of the Water/Wastewater shall be maintained at a level 

at least 80 days expenditures.  The annual budget shall target rating agency standards.    

 

 The ending resources of the Parks and Recreation Venue Fund will be maintained at a 

level at least 80 days of budgeted Parks and Recreation Venue Sales Tax revenue.  EPIC 

Surplus Operating Reserve Fund - $1,000,000 will be maintained during the term of 

171

Item 16.



 

 

15 

 

the outstanding debt schedule for EPIC.  This amount is funded by surplus sales tax 

collections. 

 

 The Pooled Investment Fund resources balance should be maintained at a level equal 

to .50% times the value of the investment portfolio.    

 

 All other enterprise funds, including the Risk Management Fund and Employee 

Insurance Fund, should be maintained at a level equivalent to a minimum of 45 days 

expenditures.  

 

Order of Expenditure of Funds – When multiple categories of fund balance are available for 

expenditure, the City will start with the most restricted category and spend those funds first before 

moving down to the next category with available funds.  

 

D.  RISK MANAGEMENT RESERVES - The City will aggressively pursue every opportunity to 

provide for the public’s and City employees’ safety and to manage its risks.  

  

Property, Liability, Workers Comp Reserves – Cash Reserves of no less than 85% of the actuarially 

determined incurred but not reported (IBNR) costs shall be maintained in the Risk Management 

Fund.  

 

Employee Insurance Reserves – Cash Reserves of no less than 100% of actuarially determined 

incurred but not reported (IBNR) costs shall be maintained in the Employee Insurance Fund. 

 

Employee Insurance Stop Loss Reserves – The City will self-fund its employee health insurance 

stop loss.  A cash reserve will be established to fund the stop loss reserve.  The City's goal will be 

a $2,000,000 stop loss reserve.  This goal will be reviewed on an annual basis during the budget 

preparation process to evaluate the funding level adequacy. 

 

Contingency Reserves – The City will self-fund a reserve in the employee insurance fund, of at 

least $2,000,000 to help offset claim years that result in higher than expected losses in order to 

preserve stability in the fund.  This reserve is not actuarially required, but has been determined a 

sound process by actuaries reviewing the insurance fund due to volatility of claims that can occur.  

This reserve will be rebuilt, in whole or part, as funding is available, up to the minimum of 

$2,000,000, during each budget year. The City may fund more in this reserve as needed or desired 

for financial stability. 

 

E.  LOSS FINANCING - All reasonable options will be investigated to finance losses.  Such options 

may include risk transfer, insurance, and risk retention. Where risk is retained, reserves will be 

established based on a calculation of incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims and actuarial 

determinations.  Such reserves will not be used for any purpose other than for financing losses.    

 

F.  ENTERPRISE FUND SELF-SUFFICIENCY - The City’s enterprise funds’ resources will be 

sufficient to fund operating and capital expenditures.  The enterprise funds will pay (where 

applicable) their fair share of general and administrative expenses, in-lieu-of-property taxes and/or 

franchise fees.  If an enterprise fund is temporarily unable to pay all expenses, then the City 

Council may waive general and administrative expenses, in-lieu-of-property taxes and/or franchise 

172

Item 16.



 

 

16 

 

fees until the fund is able to pay them.  The City Council may pay out-of-pocket expenses that a 

fund is temporarily unable to pay with interfund loans, to be repaid at a future date.  

  

G. LANDFILL RESERVES – A series of cash reserves will be funded to help ensure stable customer 

rates and long-term financial security for the City’s landfill.  The amounts required will be 

reviewed no less frequently than every second year.  

 

Liner Reserve – An amount will be set aside from operations annually so that sufficient funds have 

accumulated to pay for the next liner when required.  The amount set aside will be based on the 

average annual amount actually paid for liners over the most recent three-year period, modified 

for known scope changes, if any, anticipated in the next liner project. 

  

Equipment Replacement – An amount will be set aside from operations annually approximately 

equal to the average annual depreciation cost of all landfill equipment, based on estimated 

replacement cost less salvage value.  

 

Closure/Post Closure – The reserve required according to Generally Acceptable Accounting 

Principles (GASB Statement No.18) will be accumulated over time through annual contributions 

from operations so that sufficient funds are on hand at the end of the life of the landfill to pay 

closure/post closure costs.  

 

Landfill Replacement – The City’s goal will be to fund the amount estimated to be required to 

provide a replacement solid waste disposal facility by the end of the life of the landfill through 

annual contributions from operations.   

 

Capital Projects/Emergency Reserve – An amount approximately equal to the average annual 

amount required for miscellaneous capital improvements at the landfill will be provided annually 

from operations.  Additionally, approximately one year’s average annual amount will be retained 

in the fund to provide for miscellaneous, moderate emergencies.  

 

H. CEMETERY CARE AND MAINTENANCE FUND – In accordance with Section 713.002 of 

the Health and Safety Code, the City shall contribute 15% of every sale of burial rights (including 

graves, lawn crypts, and mausoleum crypts and columbaria niches) within the cemetery to the 

Cemetery and Maintenance Care Fund.  The principal amount contributed to the fund will be non-

expendable.  Interest earned on the fund balance shall be used for the care and preservation of 

cemetery grounds.  

 

I. CEMETERY PREPAID SERVICE FEE ESCROW – The Parks and Recreation Department is 

authorized to collect prepaid burial service fees from patrons of the cemetery.  When collected, 

such fees will be deposited into the Cemetery Prepaid Service Fee Escrow account and a separate 

record of each patron’s deposit will be maintained by the Parks and Recreation Department.  Upon 

delivery of the burial service to the patron, the amount on deposit will be transferred into the 

Cemetery Fund as revenue.  Any interest earned on the Prepaid Service Fee Escrow account 

balance will be revenue to the Cemetery Fund.  In the event the burial service is not delivered, the 

Parks and Recreation Department may refund the original amount paid without interest.  

  

J.  WATER/WASTEWATER RATE STABILIZATION FUND –  

A Water/Wastewater Rate Stabilization Fund shall be established by ordinance as a fund and 

173

Item 16.



 

 

17 

 

maintained separately from other funds.  Its purpose will be to protect rate payers from excessive 

utility rate volatility.  It may not be used for any other purpose.  It will be funded with surplus 

revenues of the Water/Wastewater Fund and interest earnings.  The City’s goal will be to maintain 

the Fund’s assets at a minimum of 7.5% of budgeted operating expenditures.  

 

X.   DEBT MANAGEMENT  
 

A. GENERAL - The City’s borrowing practices will be conducted in accordance with Debt 

Management Policies approved by the City Manager and City Council.  

 

B. SELF-SUPPORTING DEBT – When appropriate, self-supporting revenues will pay debt 

service in lieu of property tax revenues.  

 

C. ANALYSIS OF FINANCING ALTERNATIVES - The City will explore all financing 

alternatives in addition to long-term debt including leasing, grants and other aid, developer 

contributions, impact fees, and use of reserves or current monies.  

 

D. VOTER AUTHORIZATION - The City shall obtain voter authorization before issuing General 

Obligation Bonds as required by law. Voter authorization is not required for the issuance of 

Revenue Bonds, Tax Notes or Certificates of Obligations.  However, the City may elect to obtain 

voter authorization for Revenue Bonds.  

 

XI.  STAFFING AND TRAINING  
  

A.  ADEQUATE STAFFING - Staffing levels will be adequate for the fiscal functions of the City to 

function effectively.  Overtime shall be used only to address temporary or seasonal demands that 

require excessive hours.  Workload shedding alternatives will be explored before adding staff.  

 

B. TRAINING - The City will support the continuing education efforts of all financial staff including 

the investment in time and materials for maintaining a current perspective concerning financial 

issues.  Staff will be held accountable for communicating, teaching, and sharing with other staff 

members all information and training materials acquired from seminars, conferences, and related 

education efforts.  

 

C. AWARDS, CREDENTIALS - The City will support efforts and involvements which result in 

meeting standards and receiving exemplary recitations on behalf of any of the City’s fiscal policies, 

practices, processes, products, or personnel.  Staff certifications may include Certified Public 

Accountant, Certified Management Accountant, Certified Internal Auditor, Certified Payroll 

Professional, Certified Government Finance Officer, Professional Public Buyer, Registered Tax 

Assessor/Collector, and Certified Cash Manager, and others as approved by the City Manager 

upon recommendation of the Chief Financial Officer.   

  

XII.  GRANTS  
 

A. APPLICABLE LAWS – The City shall adhere to federal and state laws and regulations related 

to grants.  

 

174

Item 16.



 

 

18 

 

(a) Federal grants are governed by and the City shall adhere to Federal Register Title 2, Subtitle 

A, Chapter II, Part 200 - Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 

Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Grant Guidance). 

 

(b) State grants are governed by and the City shall adhere to Local Government Code Title 7, 

Chapter 783 - Uniform Grants Management Standards issued by the Governor’s Office of 

Budget and Planning for the State of Texas. 

 

  

B. AUTHORITY – The City Council determines the goals and priorities of the City.  All grant-

funded activities/programs are assessed and approved by the City Council to ensure that (1) the 

activity/program is consistent with these goals and priorities; (2) grant financial assistance is 

needed; and (3) grant proposals and budgets accurately reflect these goals and needs.   

 

While the City Council approves all grant activities/programs, the Council may delegate authority 

to the City Manager to accept grant awards and execute all grant-related documents. 

 

C. INDIRECT COSTS – When allowable, indirect costs may be included when formulating budgets 

prior to application submission.  The rates are determined by the Budget Department and approved 

by the City’s cognizant agency and are effective for the period October 1 – September 30 of each 

grant year. 

 

D. SOLICITATION – It is the responsibility of City Departments to locate grant sources, determine 

the appropriateness of the grant, prepare council communications regarding applications and/or 

grant offers, and draft grant applications for submission for grants which would be cost beneficial 

and meet the City’s objectives. 

 

E. SUPPLEMENT NOT SUPPLANT – FEDERAL GRANTS – The City has implemented 

guidelines to ensure compliance with federal fiscal requirement of supplement, not supplant.  The 

purpose of the procedures is to ensure that the level of state and local support for programs remains 

at least constant and is not replaced by federal funds.  Federal funds are used to supplement (add 

to, enhance, to expand, create something new, increase) the funds available from non-federal 

sources, and not to supplant (replace or take the place of) the existing non-federal funds. 

 

(a) Federal funds may be used only to provide supplemental or augment the programs generally 

offered with state and local funds. 

 

(b) Federal funds may be used only to provide supplemental services that would not have been 

provided had the federal funds not been available. 

 

(c) State and local funds which previously funded activities may not be diverted to another purpose 

simply because federal funds are now available to fund those activities.  In other words, the 

use of federal funds may not result in a decrease in state and local funds for a particular activity, 

which, the absence of the federal funds, would have been available to conduct the activity. 

 

(d) Federal funds must supplement or augment that which must be provided by state law, or any 

activities which have been adopted as policy by the City to fund from non-federal sources.   

 

175

Item 16.



 

 

19 

 

(e) If federal funds are used to enhance or expand a state mandate or city policy, the federal 

supplementary activities must be separately identified and clearly distinguishable from the 

activities identified as necessary for implementing a state mandate or city policy as outlined in 

the implementation plan. 

 

F. PROCUREMENT – In addition to City procurement policies and guidelines as outlined in the 

City’s Purchasing Policy, all applicable procurement requirements of federal and state grant fund 

regulations, other applicable laws and regulations, and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 

circulars apply to the use of grant funds.   

 

G. COMPLIANCE – The City shall comply with specific terms and conditions as set forth in Federal 

and State Grant Award Notifications (GAN).  GANs may also include general terms and 

conditions.  Should there be any inconsistency between the (1) specific terms and conditions, and 

(2) general terms and conditions, specific terms and conditions will govern.   

 

If general or specific terms and conditions conflict with City policies and procedures, the most 

conservative rule will govern.  

 

H. MANAGEMENT – Grant management lies within each Department of the City under the 

direction of Department Directors.  Department Directors are accountable to the City Manager, the 

City Council, and to the granting agencies for the financial and regulatory administration of 

Federal, State and local financial assistance awarded to the City. 

 

Grant management shall be in accordance with the City’s Grant Management Guidelines and 

Procedures Manual.  Applications will be sent to Finance prior to submission in order to establish 

appropriate accounting and reporting, as well as to ensure appropriate banking information is 

provided to the grantor. 

 

I. SECTION 8 OPERATING RESERVES - Section 8 reserves shall only be used for housing 

related expenditures in compliance with Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 

regulations.  

 

b. A minimum threshold reserve of $250,000 shall be maintained for Section 8 purposes to 

provide funding for future administrative and housing assistance payments in case funding 

from HUD is not sufficient.  Such an insufficiency might become the responsibility of the 

City should unforeseen market or economic conditions, changes in HUD policy, or human 

error result in a Section 8 deficit.  

c. In addition to the minimum reserve, a contingency account of up to $50,000 may be 

established annually which may, with the approval of the City Manager or, if appropriate, 

the City Council, be used for unforeseen, unbudgeted housing-related items. 

d. Amounts in excess of the $250,000 minimum reserve and contingency account may be 

used for housing-related projects implemented by the Housing and Neighborhood Services 

Department (HNS) and approved by the City Council. 

e. Funds may be temporarily loaned from the $250,000 minimum threshold reserve to finance 

housing-related projects if, in the judgment of the HNS Director and the City Council, the 

funds will not be required in the near future to cover a Section 8 deficit.  At the time such 

176

Item 16.



 

 

20 

 

a loan is approved, a repayment plan must also be approved. 

 

J. CDBG PROGRAMS - City Council approval shall be required to add any new activity after 

adoption of the final budget.  If the project cost of the new activity will be greater than 10% of the 

total budget, the addition shall be submitted to HUD for approval.  

  

 

XIII.    ANNUAL REVIEW & REPORTING   
 

A. These financial management policies will be reviewed administratively by the City Manager at 

least annually, prior to preparation of the operating budget and will be presented to the City 

Council for confirmation of any significant changes. 

  

B. The Chief Financial Officer will report annually to the Finance and Government Committee on                

 compliance with these policies. 

177

Item 16.


	Top
	Item 1.	General Election Bond Election Presentation
	Communication - Bond Election Presentation

	Item 2.	Internal Audit FY21 1st Quarter Report
	F&amp;G FY21 1st Qtr Report
	Internal Audit FY21 1st Quarter Report

	Item 3.	FYE 2020 Parks Enterprise Financial Reports Update
	FYE20 UNAUDITED ENTERPRISE FINANCIAL REPORTS - PARKS
	FYE 2020 Parks Enterprise Financial Reports Update

	Item 4.	Insurance Fund Monthly Review
	Monthly Insurance Fund Review
	Insurance Fund through Dec 2020

	Item 5.	Minutes of the December 15, 2020, Finance & Government Committee Meeting
	Minutes 12-15-20
	12.15.2020 F&amp;G Minutes 

	Item 6.	Minutes of the January 5, 2021, Finance & Government Committee Meeting
	010521 F &amp; G Minutes

	Item 7.	New Hazardous Materials Truck
	Hazardous Materials Truck (1)
	Fire Hazmat Vechile

	Item 8.	Agreement with GPUC for Texas Emergency Rental Assistance Program Grand Funding in the amount of $363,210.74 for rental assistance to eligible applicants in Grand Prairie
	Agreement with GPUC for Texas Emergency Rental Assistance Program Grant Funding in the Amount of $363,210.74

	Item 9.	Less-Lethal Shotgun Purchase
	ITEM-Less-Lethal Shotgun Purchase
	21004 - Evaluation Score Card

	Item 10.	RES: STEP CVE Grant
	2022 STEP CEV Grant
	2022 Proposal STEP CVE

	Item 11.	RES: FY21 EMPG
	EMPG Resolution

	Item 12.	RES: 2020 STEP Comprehensive Grant
	2022 STEP Comprehensive Grant
	2022 Proposal for STEP

	Item 13.	Audio, Visual and Lighting Agreement with Mike Milligan and Ty Cunningham
	Audio, Visual and Lighting Agreement with Mike Milligan and Tye Cunningham
	21023 - CC EXHIBIT

	Item 14.	Change Order/Amendment No. 6 with Hill and Wilkinson for City Hall Municipal Ph II in the amount of $95,129.45
	CO 6 Hill and Wilkinson CH PH II
	Change Order-Amendment No. 6 with Hill and Wilkinson for City Hall Municipal Campus Ph II

	Item 15.	ORD: Ordinance Calling a Bond Election on May 1, 2021 in the amount of $75,000,000 for the Purpose of Providing Funds for Economic Development
	Communication - Bond Election
	Bond Election Ordinance May 2021

	Item 16.	RES: Resolution to Adopt 2021 Financial Management Policies
	Resolution 2021 FInancial Management Policies 2-2 F&G
	Financial Management Policies 2021 - MARK UP
	Financial Management Policies 2021 - FINAL

	Bottom

